
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 

Thursday, 28th July, 2022 
6.30 pm 

 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
Executive DATE - 28-07-22 Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE 
 
ROOMS 2 & 3, BURNLEY TOWN 
HALL 
 
Thursday, 28th July, 2022 at 6.30 pm 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Members are reminded that if they have detailed questions on individual 
reports, they are advised to contact the report authors in advance of the 
meeting. 
 
Members of the public may ask a question, make a statement, or present a 
petition relating to any agenda item or any matter falling within the remit of the 
committee. 
 
Notice in writing of the subject matter must be given to the Head of Legal & 
Democracy by 5.00pm on the day before the meeting.  Forms can be obtained 
for this purpose from the reception desk at Burnley Town Hall, Manchester 
Road or at the Contact Centre, Parker Lane, Burnley or from the web at: 
http://burnley.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13234 . You 
can also register to speak via the online agenda.  Requests will be dealt with in 
the order in which they are received. 
 
There is limited space to accommodate members of the public due to Public 
Health guidance around social distancing.  You are advised to contact 
democracy@burnley.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 
 
AGENDA 
  
1) Apologies   
 To receive any apologies for absence   
2) Minutes  5 - 12 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th 

July 2022 
 

 
3) Additional Items of Business   
 To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 

by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
  

 

 
4) Declaration of Interest   
 In accordance with the Regulations, Members are required to declare any  

http://burnley.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13234
mailto:democracy@burnley.gov.uk


 
Executive DATE - 28-07-22 Page 3 of 3 
 

personal or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the 
nature of those interests in respect of items on this agenda and/or 
indicate if S106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to 
them. 
   

5) Exclusion of the Public   
 To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 

from the meeting. 

  

 

 
6) Right To Speak   
 To consider questions, statements or petitions from Members of the 

Public 
 

 
7) Shared Prosperity Fund  13 - 70 
 
8) Exclusion of the Public   
 To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 

from the meeting and to consider the exclusion of the public from the 
meeting before discussion takes place on the following items of business 
on the grounds that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
if the public were present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt 
information within the meaning of Part VA of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

 

 
PRIVATE ITEMS 
 

 

 Details of any representations received by the Executive about why any 
of the following reports should be considered in public – None received. 
  
Statement in response to any representations – Not required 

 

 
9) Rough Sleeping Programme  71 - 78 
 
MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE  
 

 

Councillor Afrasiab Anwar (Chair) 
Councillor Sue Graham (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor John Harbour 
 

Councillor Shah Hussain 
Councillor Margaret Lishman 
Councillor Mark Townsend 

 
PUBLISHED Wednesday, 20 July 2022 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 1 of 7 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE 
 
BURNLEY TOWN HALL 
 
Wednesday, 13th July, 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 

 
 

PRESENT  
 

 

MEMBERS  
 Councillors A Anwar (Chair), S Graham (Vice-Chair), J Harbour, S Hussain, 

M Lishman and M Townsend 
 

OFFICERS   
 Mick Cartledge  Chief Executive 
 Simon Goff  Head of Green Spaces and Amenities 
 Howard Hamilton-Smith  Head of Finance and Property 
 Clare Jackson  Housing Manager 
 Joanne Swift  Head of Streetscene 
 Carol Eddleston  Democracy Officer 

 
  

14. Apologies  
 
All of those expected to attend were present. 
  

15. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the last meeting, held on 14th June 2022, were approved as a correct 
record. 
  

16. Declaration of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda. 
  

17. Play Strategy Review  
 
PURPOSE 
  
To review the Play Strategy 2017-2026 and to seek approval to progress implementation.  
  
DECISION 
  
That the Executive: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 2 of 7 
 

  
a.    Notes the progress made implementing the Play Strategy 2017-2026. 
b.    Approves the implementation of the Play Strategy as identified in the report. 
c.     Notes the recommendation to identify a town centre location for the future 

development of a wheeled sports area. 
d.    Approves the proposal to develop pump tracks in the locations identified in the 

report, subject to external grant and s106 funding. 
  
REASON FOR DECISION 
  
To ensure that the Council maintains an equitable distribution of play areas across the 
borough within the constraints of the limited resources available and makes adequate 
provision for wheeled sports on the borough. 
  
  

18. Review of Hackney Carriage Fares  
 
PURPOSE 
  
To consider a request from the Hackney trade to increase the Hackney Carriage Table of 
Fares. The proposed increase for Tariff 1 & 2 has the support of the Hackney Carriage 
trade representatives and active/working Hackney Carriage drivers licensed by Burnley 
Borough Council. 
  
DECISION 
  

1.    That Executive approves the proposed increase to metered Hackney Carriage fares 
on Tariff 1 & 2 illustrated at Appendix B to the report, and 

2.    That, in the event of any objections, Executive delegates authority to the Head of 
Streetscene in consultation with the Executive Member for Community and 
Environmental Services to consider any objections received and, after due 
consideration, to set a new implementation date with or without modifications. 

  
REASON FOR DECISION 
  
The setting of Hackney Carriage fares is an Executive function but not a key decision. 
  
  

19. Various Compulsory Purchase Orders for Empty Homes and Facelifting 
Scheme  

 
PURPOSE 
  

1.    To seek approval to make several Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) for long 
term vacant properties in the private sector. 

2.    To dispose of the properties in accordance with the Council’s Disposal of Empty 
Dwellings Policy and scheme of delegation or to Calico Homes as appropriate. 

3.    To seek approval for a programme of external property Facelifting works on Albion 
Street Padiham, Wytham Street Padiham, and to the rears of Windsor Street and 
Ivory Street. 

Page 6



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 3 of 7 
 

4.    To seek approval to build a property on the site of 10A Briercliffe Road, suitable for a 
family with a disabled member (subject to necessary permissions from Planning etc) 
using Better Care Funding. 

  
DECISION 
  

1.    That the Head of Housing and Development Control in consultation with the relevant 
Executive Member approve in pursuance of the powers obtained under Section 17 of 
the Housing Act 1985 (as amended) to make the following compulsory purchase 
orders for the purpose of renovation and/or re-sale by the most appropriate method:  

  
The Burnley (18 Russell Terrace Padiham Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 
2022 
The Burnley (22 Wythburn Close Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (25 Crow Wood Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (38 Woodbine Road Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (12 Herbert Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (39 Herbert Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (47 Piccadilly Road Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (7 Parkinson Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (80 Reed Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (17 Thurston Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (23 Thurston Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (25 Thurston Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (24 Newman Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (10A Briercliffe Road Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (91 Basnett Street Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 
The Burnley (18 Raglan Road Burnley) Compulsory Purchase Order 2022 

                  
2.    That the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to agree terms for 

the acquisition of the properties, to acquire the properties in this report by agreement 
as an alternative to compulsory purchase in accordance with the terms of delegation. 

  
3.    To authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to make minor 

amendments, modifications or deletions to the CPO schedule of interests and map, 
should this be necessary, and to finalise the making and submission of the CPO, 
including promoting the Council’s case at public inquiry, if necessary.  
  

4.    Subject to confirmation by the Secretary of State to authorise the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services to secure full title to and possession of the CPO land as 
appropriate by: 
  

       Serving notice of confirmation of the CPO on all interested parties 
       Serving notice of intention to execute a General Vesting Declaration 
       Executing the General Vesting Declaration 
       Serving Notices to Treat and/or Entry as appropriate 
       Acquiring land and interests by agreement if possible 

  
5.    That the Executive authorises the tendering of any renovation/building works in 

accordance with SOC 1, 15 and 16 and delegates power to accept the tender to the 
Head of Housing and Development Control. 
  

Page 7



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 4 of 7 
 

6.    That the Executive approves that the proceeds from the sale of the properties is 
recycled back into the Empty Homes Programme for further acquisitions and 
renovations. 
  

7.    That the Executive approves the facelifting schemes on Albion Street and Wytham 
Street in Padiham and the rears of Windsor and Ivory Street Burnley. 
  

8.    That the Executive approves the use of the Better Care Fund to rebuild a fully 
adapted house on the site of 10A Briercliffe Road for occupation by a family with 
disabled members subject to Lancashire County Council approval. 

  
REASONS FOR DECISION 
  

1.    The owners of these properties have been contacted and have either not responded at all or 
have given no reasonable proposals for renovating the property or bringing it back into 
housing use.   
  

2.     These properties are long term vacant properties, being empty, in one case for 19 years. 
Without intervention by the Council through acquisition by agreement or CPO the properties 
may remain vacant, continue to deteriorate, attract anti-social behaviour, fly-tipping and 
arson, all of which cause fear in local residents, resulting in a declining neighbourhood.  
  

           18 Russell Terrace Padiham Burnley vacant since 11th February 2020  
           22 Wythburn Close Burnley vacant for approximately 4 years 
           25 Crow Wood Burnley vacant since 14th October 2016 
           38 Woodbine Road Burnley vacant since 30th June 2017 
           12 Herbert Street Burnley vacant since 14th January 2013 
           39 Herbert Street Burnley vacant since 19th January 2013 
           47 Piccadilly Road Burnley vacant since 12th February 1996 
           7 Parkinson Street Burnley vacant since 21st January 2011 
           80 Reed Street Burnley vacant since 22nd April 2019 
           17 Thurston Street Burnley vacant since 9th November 2017 
           23 Thurston Street Burnley vacant since 15th May 2012 
           25 Thurston Street Burnley vacant since 21st March 1998 
           24 Newman Street Burnley vacant since 3rd July 2020 
           10A Briercliffe Road Burnley vacant since at least 2008 
           91 Basnett Street Burnley vacant since 1st March 2015 
           18 Raglan Road Burnley vacant since 13th September 2017 
  

3.    To use facelifting as a regeneration tool in certain areas to improve the external appearance 
of blocks, to assist in raising property values, to assist in raising demand and so reducing the 
number of empty properties and to encourage complementary investment in the properties 
by their owners. 
  

4.    To further improve the appearance of key gateways and main thoroughfares. 
  

5.    Through the Vacant Property Initiative and Empty Homes Programme over 150 properties 
have been acquired, refurbished and re-sold or re let, bringing those properties back into 
use and providing high quality accommodation. 
  

Page 8



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 5 of 7 
 

  
  

20. 2021-22 Final Revenue Outturn Position  
 
PURPOSE 
  
To report the provisional position on the Council’s revenue accounts for 2021/22. 
  
DECISION 
  
That full Council be recommended to approve: 
  

a.    The provisional final position on the Council’s revenue account for 2021/22 shows a 
net underspend of £221k which has been transferred to the Revenue Support 
Reserve. The projected overspend from the outturn position estimated during quarter 
3 budget monitoring was £12k. 

b.    The transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves totalling a net £1.098m increase to 
reserves (see Appendix 2). 

c.     The approval of additional revenue budget carry forward requests from Heads of 
Service totalling £1.349m (see Appendix 3). 

  
REASON FOR DECISION 
  
To conclude the revenue budget monitoring process for 2021/22 and report the final outturn 
position as outlined in the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2021/22. 
  

21. 2021-22 Final Capital Outturn Position  
 
PURPOSE 
  

1.    To report to Members on the performance of the 2021/22 capital investment 
programme and present the financing of capital expenditure incurred during 2021/22. 

2.    To seek approval of a revised 2022/23 capital budget after incorporating net carry 
forward commitments (slippage) from 2021/22. 

  
DECISION 
  
That full Council be recommended to approve: 
  

a.    The final position on capital spending and financing of £33.504m for 2021/22 as 
shown in Appendices 1 & 2, which equates to 90% of the final resources position. 

b.    The revised capital budget for 2022/23 totalling £41.408m as outlined in Appendix 3, 
(including net carry forward of £3.617m). 

  
REASONS FOR DECISION 
  

1.    To conclude the capital budget monitoring process for 2021/22 and report the final 
outturn position as outlined in the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2021/22. 

2.    To increase the 2022/23 Council capital programme for amounts carried forward 
from 2021/22 and other budget adjustments as shown in Appendix 3. 

  

Page 9



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 6 of 7 
 

22. Annual Treasury Management Review of 2021-22 Activity  
 
PURPOSE 
  
To inform members of the Council’s treasury management activity during 2021/22. 
  
DECISION 
  
That full Council be recommended to note the annual treasury management activity for the 
year ended 31 March 2022. 
  
REASONS FOR DECISION 
  
To comply with the regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an 
annual treasury management report review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2021/22. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). Performance against the approved 
prudential and treasury indicators are shown in Appendix 1. 
  
During 2021/22 the minimum reporting requirements were that Full Council should receive 
the following reports: 
  
•         an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Full Council 24 February 2021) 
•         a mid-year treasury update report (Full Council 08 December 2021) 
•         an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 

strategy (this report). 
  
The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and scrutiny of 
treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore important, as it provides 
details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the 
Council’s policies previously approved by Members.  
  
This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give prior 
scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Scrutiny Committee before 
they were reported to Full Council. Member training on treasury management issues was 
undertaken during the year on 25 November 2021 in order to support Members’ scrutiny 
role. 
  
  

23. Exclusion of the Public  
 
Members determined to exclude the public from the meeting before discussion took place 
on the following item of business on the grounds that in view of the nature of the business 
to be transacted if the public were present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt 
information within the meaning of part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
  

24. Towneley Hall Repairs  
 

Page 10



 

 
Executive 13/07/2022  Page 7 of 7 
 

PURPOSE 
  
To report the outcome of procurement for the Towneley Hall repair contract and to identify 
the additional capital resources that are required to fund the repairs. 
  
DECISION 
  
That the Executive endorses the outcome of the procurement set out in the report and that 
full Council be recommended to approve the additional provision identified in the financial 
sections of the report in the Council’s Capital Programme 2024-25 to enable the repairs to 
Towneley Hall to be undertaken. 
  
REASON FOR DECISION 
  
The work to repair the Hall is vital to ensure the building is maintained. 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO  
 

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan 
 

Report to Executive 

 
DATE 28th July 2022 
PORTFOLIO Economy & Growth 
REPORT 
AUTHOR Kate Ingram/Sam Smallridge 

TEL NO 01282 477271/ 

 EMAIL kingram@burnley.gov.uk/ssmallridge@burnley.govuk 

 
PURPOSE 

 
1. The purpose of the report is to seek approval of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

Investment Plan for submission to government for approval 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
2. It is recommended that the Executive: 

a) Approves the Investment Plan in Appendix 1 of the report 
b) Delegates authority to the Strategic Head of Economy and Growth, up to the 

submission date, to make minor changes to the wording or layout of the 
Investment Plan 

c) Delegates authority to Strategic Head of Economy and Growth in 
consultation with the Head of Finance and Property to negotiate and enter 
into funding agreements with the Government. 

d) Delegates authority to the Strategic Head of Economy and Growth in 
consultation with the Executive Member for Economy and Growth to 
commission services funded by the UKSPF and to enter into service level 
agreements with delivery bodies 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
3. In May the government issued details of the UKSPF programme including a £3.4m 

allocation for Burnley.  The Council has to submit an Investment Plan no later than the 1st 
August 2022. 
 

4. The delegations will enable the council to move swiftly into a delivery phase ensuring that 
projects deliver and that spend allocations for 22/23 are fully utilised. 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS 
 
What is UK SPF? 
        

5. The UK SPF was launched by government in early 2022 to support its ‘levelling up’ 
agenda.  The funds replace EU funding streams including ESIF and ERDF hitherto 
delivered on a County wide basis.  Across Lancashire, the amount of SPF funding 
available is approximately 40% less than the current European Funding Programmes.  All 
local councils have been allocated a share of the fund to invest in their areas by March 
2025. Government has adopted a “blended approach” to allocating funds with 70% of the 
funding being allocated on a per capital basis and 30% on a needs based index 
accounting for productivity, household income and skills. 
 

6. Burnley Borough Council has been allocated £3,488,102.00 over the next three years, 
profiled as set out in the table below.  The capital spend is a minimum and local areas 
can allocate a higher proportion of capital. 
 
 22/23 23/24 24/25 
Revenue 380,981 736,565 1,774,539 
Capital 42,331 190,061 443,622 
Total 423,313 846,627 2,218,162 

 
7. This can be used to support a wide range of interventions to build pride in place and 

improve life chances, across three investment priorities:  
 

• Community and place  
• Supporting local business  
• People and skills  

 
8. To access this funding, the Council must submit an investment plan by 1 August 2022, 

setting out the mix of interventions, outcomes and outputs that we will deliver to meet our 
local needs. The interventions are chosen from a pre-scribed list of 41 interventions 
across the three priorities. 

 
Investment Plan Development Process 

 
9. To develop our local investment plan, council officers have engaged with a wide range of 

organisations currently involved in delivering European funded projects to support local 
businesses and in developing people and skills. It is estimated that circa £3m per annum 
is currently spent on these activities in Burnley with the funding coming to an end in June 
23 and December 22 respectively. 
 

10. We have assessed the 41 interventions against the Council’s priorities identified in the 
Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy and the Community Recovery plan to assess 
best fit with local priorities.  A list of interventions that have been rejected is included in 
Appendix 2. The main reasons for rejection are that the interventions would require a 
scale of investment not available in this programme, for example new business parks, 
transport infrastructure or that there are other funding streams available through for 
example the National Lottery, Arts Council or specific government departments.  There 
are also some interventions that overlap and for ease of administration the best fit has 
been chosen. 

Page 14



 

 

 
11. In terms of projects to deliver the interventions the Council is working with locally based 

organisations harnessing the skills and experience of partners who are best placed to 
deliver projects and interventions to co-design and commission services.  Under the 
supporting business priority the Council has engaged with a wide range of existing 
providers of business support services that are currently delivered on a County or region 
wide basis. 
 

12. A list of organisations that we have co-operated with in developing the Investment Plan is 
listed in Appendix 3. 

 
 

Investment Plan Content and Key Projects 
 

13. The Council’s Investment Plan is set out in Appendix 1 of this report.  A summary of the 
key interventions and project proposals (details to be developed) are set out in Appendix 
4. 

 
Programme Management and Governance 
 

14. The programme will be managed by Burnley Borough Council.  Up to 4% of the allocation 
can be used to cover the administration costs of the project.  An SPF Project Manager 
has already been appointed to develop the Investment Plan, complete negotiations with 
HMG, commission services and to monitor and evaluate the programme throughout its 
term. 
 

15. The SPF guidance states that local areas must establish a partnership including local and 
regional stakeholders, civil society groups, businesses and business organisations to 
provide governance for the programme.  It is proposed to utilise the existing Economic 
Recovery and Growth Board for this role as all the relevant bodies are already engaged 
and there is a strong overlap with the delivery of the Economic Recovery and Growth 
strategy. 

 
16. It is proposed that the Council will commission services rather than invite competitive 

bids.  This process will ensure that funding is directed to where it is most needed rather 
than those bodies able to write the best proposals. 
 

17. Local Authorities must as a minimum monitor spend, outputs and outcomes against 
agreed indicators and it is advised that local areas should carry out process evaluations 
for projects.  The programme will be evaluated nationally. 

 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION 

 
18. Government will pay each lead local authority in England, Scotland and Wales 

annually in advance. In 2022-23, funding will be paid once the local investment plan 
has been signed off. In 2023-24 and 2024-25, local authorities will receive payment  
at the start of the financial year. Lead local authorities will receive a grant 
determination letter and Memorandum of Understanding setting out Fund 

Page 15



 

 

requirements and obligations. Lead local authorities will be asked to return any 
underspends at the end of each financial year.  
 

19. Government expect Fund investment and outputs to be achieved in line with each 
place’s investment plan, on time and in-year. We reserve the right to withhold or 
delay payment and alter payment cycles from 2023-24 onwards where there are 
performance or other issues with delivery. 

 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
20. The decision supports the Council’s strategic priorities and the recently adopted 

Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy, and Community Recovery Strategy 
 

 
DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 

 
21. As set out in Appendix 2. 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
22. None 

 
FURTHER INFORMATION       
PLEASE CONTACT: Kate Ingram Ext 7271 
ALSO:  

 
 

Page 16



 

 

        

  

  
 

UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund  

 
Investment Plan Drafting Template  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Version 2   

May 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

 

Your location 
To be eligible for funding, you will need to be applying on behalf of a lead authority in one of 
the delivery geographies. 

Select the lead authority Burnley Borough Council 

For Scotland and Wales only: Who else is this investment plan being submitted on behalf 
of? Select all that apply 

Your details 

Name Kate Ingram 

Email address kingram@burnley.gov.uk 

Phone number  01282 425011 

Organisation name Burnley Borough Council 

 

Local challenges and opportunities 

In this section, we will ask you: 

• If you've identified any challenges or opportunities, you intend to support 
• Which of the UKSPF investment priorities these fall under 

ARE THERE ANY LOCAL CHALLENGES YOU FACE WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
(If yes) Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 
 
Population and Demographics 
Burnley is the 11th most deprived district in England and 38.3% of the authority’s Lower Super 
Output areas are in the 10% most deprived in England. 
 
Health Deprivation is prevalent in many communities.  Life expectancy is below average at 75.7 
compared to 79.4 in England.  Public Health England estimate that the borough has a diabetes rate 
of 83.9 compared to an England average of 78 per 100k.  Physical activity rate in over 18’s is below 
average at 62.1% and the % of adults that are overweight or obese is 73,4% compared to 63.5% in 
England.  Lancashire County Council’s Child Heatlh Profiles (2017) shows that there are a high 
proportion of children living in poverty, a higher-than-average number of reception children that are 
carrying excess weight and high road traffic accidents for children aged 0-19, together with low 
educational attainment and high levels of unplanned hospitalization for asthma, diabetes and 
epilepsy. 
 
 
Place 
 
The Borough has two main town centres – Burnley and Padiham.  Burnley is a significant centre 
serving a population beyond the immediate borough with a good range of shops, leisure facilities, 
offices./workplaces, public services and FE and HE institutions.  Burnley Town Centre has 
benefitted from major investment in its public realm and transport infrastructure and is currently 
being further transformed with a £20m Cinema and Leisure extension.  Some of the secondary 
shopping areas are showing signs of decline and this is being addressed in part through the 
Heritage Action Zone.  Footfall has remained high throughout the COVID pandemic, and the town 
continues to enjoy high levels of footfall and spend.  There is an active Business Improvement 
District implementing a programme of activities.  The Council has a Town Centre master plan a 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-pre-launch-guidance/delivery-geographies


 

 

number of projects identified for delivery, but they are beyond the scope of the UK SPF.  Three 
projects – the University Campus, Town to Turf access improvements and Burnley Manchester 
Road Rail station access are being addressed through a successful Levelling Up Fund Program. 
 
Outside of the main town centre’s there are a number of very deprived inner urban areas that have 
benefitted from regeneration and investment in new housing as a result of the previous Housing 
Market Renewal Program.  However, these areas still suffer from an oversupply of poor quality, 
thermally inefficient terraced housing, high levels of vacancy, a growing number of houses in 
multiple occupation, together with an under-investment in public realm, green space and public 
amenities. Burnley ranks 16th worst out of 317 district councils for Living Environment in 2019 
deprivation indices. These are all issues that can be addressed through UK SPF but for which there 
is insufficient funding to address the scale of the challenges in these neighbourhoods. 
 
 
The borough is well served by parks and open spaces with high levels of user satisfaction, although 
a parks and green spaces survey has indicated that the provision for children and young people is 
insufficient.  The Council’s Play Strategy has identified 17 play facilities requiring improvements for 
an un-met demand for pump tracks and the need to update and replace wheeled sports facilities.  
The borough also benefits from relatively good playing pitch provision with the recent investment in 
5g pitches significantly increasing capacity.  But other facilities, notably tennis and athletics, where 
there are not large amounts of funding available nationally are in relatively poor condition and 
under-utilised by the community. 
 
Community Capacity – 
 
Burnley has a vibrant and ever-increasing number of third sector organisation.  The community, 
voluntary and faith sector has seen an increase in people coming together to deliver volunteer and 
support services in their local community.  The Local Council for Voluntary services supported over 
500 organisations including 36 start-ups in 20/21. 
The sector in Burnley is fully integrated into partnership delivery. Examples including social 
prescribing services, community transport, community integration and cohesion services, advisory 
services, a huge range of commissioned and non-commissioned leisure activity, and provision of 
low/no cost food and other supplies.   Increasing the sector's capacity is important for the 
sustainability of public services.  The sector can engage with some of our most vulnerable 
residents more effectively than statutory organisations.  In addition to the person-centred culture in 
many VCFS organisations which helps to build trust, many VCFS organisations are located in 
communities of need making access to their services easy.  However, the sector faces a number 
of challenges.  Many organisations are dependent on older volunteers who in time will be unable to 
continue supporting the sector and there is a need to attract young people and people of working 
age.  Community-owned buildings run on shoe-string budgets and often in need of physical 
investment.   Day to day expenses have soared due to rising energy costs.  This might result in 
reduced access times to services provided from those buildings.  The borough has a new and 
emerging community of refugees and Asylum seekers whose needs are very different to those of 
the long-established communities and there is a need to build up social capital to help these new 
communities integrate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ARE THERE ANY LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES UNDER THE COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
INVESTMENT PRIORITY THAT YOU INTEND TO SUPPORT? 
(If yes) Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 
The Borough benefits from a vibrant and active third sector, ranging from local community groups, 
friends of parks, arts and heritage organisations as well as faith groups, parish and town councils. 
These organisations are best placed to deliver a lot of the activity under the communities and place 
strand.  These organisations are passionate and invested in the area, they understand what is 

Page 19



 

 

needed and how/why it will work.    Burnley Pendle and Rossendale CVS has a long track record in 
supporting community and voluntary organisations. Over many years they have managed and 
facilitated grants programmes, currently these include a small grant programmes on behalf of East 
Lancs Clinical commissioning group; Eric Wright Construction, Cliviger wind farm and the Lottery 
Fund - Gannow Big Local fund. The CVS is ideally placed to have a reach into the community and 
provide a platform for community and third sector organisations to access UKSPF . As well as 
enabling access to grants they provide support and guidance from the beginning of the process 
right through to conclusion and reporting.  The CVS will also assist groups to access other funding 
from the Arts Council, Lottery etc ensuring that the UKSPF funding leverages even greater 
investment in the town. 
 
Play is fundamental to the development of our young children as it contributes to their cognitive, 
physical, social and emotional wellbeing. Outdoor play in parks and green spaces is an important 
part of children’s play experience and provides an ideal opportunity for families to play together and 
for children to interact with others. It encourages mental and physical health and helps to tackle 
childhood obesity (a major challenge) and encourages community cohesion.  The Strategy also 
identifies a demand for “wheeled sports facilities”, that is purpose-built facilities for skateboards, 
BMX bikes, mini-scooters and roller blades.  The introduction of BMX and Skateboarding to the 
Olympics has boosted participation, it provides opportunities for young people, particularly those 
who do not engage with other sports to be active and provides a safe “off road” environment for 
wheeled sports.  A number of schemes are identified the main one being a Town Centre Skatepark.  
Investment in parks and play facilities will contribute to a number of intervention areas as well as 
addressing some of the childhood health issues identified. 
 
The Burnley Town Centre and Canalside Masterplan identifies a range of projects to enhance the 
town centre.  A number of large projects with a combined value of over £40m are already funded 
and underway.  A key project is the development of a Youth Zone in the town centre.  A Youth 
Zone is a purpose-built facility providing open access youth services to all young people (aged 8-19 
– up to 25 with a disability) from across the borough regardless of socio-economic background, 
ethnicity or culture.  Additional specialist support services will be available for young people facing 
challenges or personal struggles to succeed.  The Youth Zone will have state of the art facilities 
including a sports hall, climbing wall, boxing gym, fitness suite, 3G pitch, sensory room, arts, crafts, 
dance & music rooms with an estimated capital investment of £8 - 9 million.   
 
Padiham has recently benefitted from circa £5m of investment in public realm, highways 
improvements and historic building renovations and is transforming into a thriving independent 
retail hub, although there are still a number of eyesore buildings that could benefit from further 
intervention.  The Environment Agency are currently implementing a significant flood defence 
scheme.  There is a large piece of Brownfield Land circa 5 ha that cannot be protected from 
flooding and redeveloped as previously planned.  This provides an opportunity to create a large 
area of green/blue infrastructure and informal open space which will also deliver benefits as a result 
of carbon sequestration, property value uplift and volunteering opportunities.   
 
 
 
 

 

ARE THERE ANY LOCAL CHALLENGES YOU FACE WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
(If yes) Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 
The local economy faces a number of challenges that have been exacerbated by the recent COVID 
pandemic.  A study of Pennine Lancashire by Hatch Regeneris noted: 
 

• Lower number of active enterprises per had of 100 population at 3.2, compared with 
4.1/100 in North West and 4.4/100 in GB 

• Good and increasing business start up rates but poor business survival with only 58.3% of 
new businesses surviving to 3 years compared to 61.3% nationally. 

• Relatively low levels of GVA.  GVA/job in 2019 stood at £48,981 in East Lancashire 
(Burnley data not available) compared with £51,072 in the NW and £56,669 nationally 

Page 20



 

 

 

During 2020 the Council worked with a wide range of public, private and third sector partners to 
develop an Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy setting out how the borough would work to 
recover from the immediate impacts of the pandemic, respond to Brexit and address some of the 
underlying economic challenges.  Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, Burnley had benefitted from a 
decade of employment growth and investment, despite economic forecasts predicting further 
decline and job losses due to the borough’s over-dependence on manufacturing.  This has not 
been the case and manufacturing jobs have in fact grown over the last decade. 

The impacts of the pandemic on the borough were immediate, with a significant number of 
redundancies announced during Quarter 2 of 2020, notably in the aerospace, automotive and 
manufacturing sectors.  Over the year 2020/21 the number of employee jobs fell by approximately 
1000 (ONS), with many jobs protected by the furlough scheme. 

GVA also fell during this period by 0.58%, following a decade of positive growth.  That said this is a 
relatively small reduction in GVA compared to a national figure of approximately –3.5%.  Despite 
this recent performance, GVA in the borough remains comparatively low and a major challenge. 
Burnley has a number of economic assets but has long experienced a productivity gap when 
compared to the rest of the UK and despite improved economic performance over the years, the 
gap continues to widen. 

The recent events in Ukraine and the subsequent impact on fuel prices and commodity supplies will 
continue to challenge businesses particularly in the manufacturing, transport and food and 
hospitality sectors which account for 27% of all employee jobs in the borough. 

The Burnley Economic Recovery and Growth strategy identifies that over the medium to longer 
term, raising productivity (GVA per worker), increasing the number of people with higher level skills, 
raising wage levels, diversifying the businesses base and mix of employment available to residents, 
and increasing business investment in innovation, research and development, increasing exports 
and internationalisation are necessary to close the productivity gap. 

To achieve this will require an increased concentration of knowledge-based business in a broader 
range of sectors including, low carbon, Medi-Tech, creative, digital, design and high technology; all 
underpinned by the borough's inherent strengths and assets in the precision engineering and 
manufacturing. 

Skills remain a key weakness of the local economy with a disproportionate number of people with 
“no qualifications” and too few people with higher levels skills, including level 4+.  As businesses 
look to implement automation and digitisation processes to become more productive the demand 
for higher skills will continue to rise. 

With the cessation of European funding, the dismantling of the Lancashire wide Business Support 
offer poses a major challenge.  Lancashire benefits from a strong business support infrastructure 
with BOOST Lancashire providing a gateway and generic business support offer for start-ups and 
growing companies.  The Lancashire Innovation Board brings together Lancashire’s HEI’s including 
UCLAN, Lancaster University, Edge Hill and the AMRCNW, to deliver a strategic and joined up 
innovation offer to businesses.  This infrastructure is currently under threat and dependent on 
support from 14 separate local authorities and overall a much reduced budget than was previously 
available through ESIF. 

 
 
ARE THERE ANY LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES UNDER THE SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS 
INVESTMENT PRIORITY THAT YOU INTEND TO SUPPORT? 
(If yes) Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 
Despite the challenges there are opportunities.  The number of employee jobs in Burnley grew by 
approximately 7% over the decade to 2020.  Initial indicators showed that the borough rode the 

Page 21



 

 

worst of the pandemic.  The borough’s share of high growth businesses has grown to 4.48% 
compared with 4.34 GB, and 4.19 across Lancashire.    
 
Local companies are well-placed to adapt to low carbon and clean energy opportunities.  The trend 
for digitisation and automation in engineering and manufacturing presents opportunities for higher 
value activity and skilled roles.  However, to achieve this there is a need to increase the capability 
and capacity in the borough’s economic infrastructure with a focus on skills, innovation, productivity 
and investment.  The ability of companies to secure and increase investment for diversification into 
new markets, including international, and introduce automation and digitisation processes will 
present opportunities for growth and resilience to economic shocks. 
 
Lancashire has in place a strong business support infrastructure.  BOOST Lancashire provides a 
generic business support offer with a single point of contact.  Uptake of the service from Burnley 
businesses has been good.  Over the period Jan 2019 – Dec 21 the service has dealt with 308 
enquiries, supported 60 start ups, engaged 48 businesses in mentoring and provided bespoke in-
depth support to 26 businesses.).  There is an opportunity with SPF to further simplify the offer 
making it more adaptable and accessible for a wider range of businesses than was permitted under 
ESIF rules. 
 
Reducing carbon footprint is a high priority for businesses particularly with the recent and sudden 
increase in fuel costs.  There are already a number of existing ESIF funded programmes assisting 
businesses to reduce their carbon footprint including East Lancashire Chamber of Commerce, the 
Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre North West and UCLAN.  However, feedback from 
businesses suggests that the offer is confusing and sometimes overlapping.  The three 
organisations have come together with a comprehensive and joined up package of support to 
assist businesses to implement plans to work toward net zero.  As well as delivering environmental 
benefits there are significant productivity gains to be made through this activity. 
 

The expansion of the UCLAN campus represents a major growth opportunity and will boost the 
economic prospects of the borough and wider Pennine Lancashire. Indeed, for many years it has 
been acknowledged that the lack of an anchor institution has hindered economic growth in the 
area, and therefore the establishment of a Higher Education Anchor Institution that can support 
both higher level skills development, business innovation, and technology transfer should be a key 
ask made collectively by local partners of Government. A successful Round 1 LUF bid will see a 
£14m investment in the campus, with the redevelopment of Newtown Mill which will incorporate a 
Business Interaction Zone for the delivery of business engagement and business support with the 
University.  UCLAN has joined together with other HEI’s in the County to offer a joined up business 
support offer. The current suite of ESIF projects delivered by the Lancashire HEI’s and other 
partners are due to end in June 2023. These cover activities and sectors such as health, low 
carbon, manufacturing, leadership/management, start-up and scale-up, SME placements and 
digital/cyber security.  The successful elements of these projects have been brought together in the 
proposed Innovation programme, utilising the complementary expertise across the partnership. 
This will make the overall proposition from partners clearer for businesses and referral agents, 
avoiding duplication or competition for outputs and deliver value for money. Elements of the 
programme have been already tested as part of two successful Community Renewal Fund (CRF) 
projects delivered in Blackpool and wider Lancashire. These are due to end in September 2022.  
UKSPF represents the only opportunity currently to continue to deliver and refine innovation 
activities previously funded by ESIF to support the business base by providing access to facilities 
and expertise, help to deliver new products processes and services and expose the student and 
graduate talent to local organisations to support their projects and long-term retention of skills. 
Through current and previous ESIF programmes, the universities have undertaken 235 company 
engagements in Burnley and generated a ROI of between £10 and £28 for every £1 of funding, so 
these impacts and staff could be lost in addition to the ability to create and sustain high value jobs 
and retain talent.  Current delivery is at risk as ESIF funding comes to an end, at a time when there 
is a great need for business to innovate and adopt to new processes and products. 

Burnley has a very strong manufacturing sector.  Despite the decline of manufacturing nationally 
the sector here is broad and adaptable with a large number of SME’s.  Manchester Growth 
Company currently deliver a Manufacturing Advice Service across Greater Manchester and 
Lancashire.  The service is well used in the Burnley area. To date 40 businesses have been 

Page 22



 

 

engaged with 11 resulting in supported grant projects with a total match of £145k.  There are other 
additional impacts such as R&D activity increased, productivity impacts. E.g.:  2 company 
interventions resulted in them committing to long term sponsored PhD and Masters Engineering 
projects as a direct result of the work undertaken. And a further one resulted in a 20% improvement 
in operational Productivity. The Growth Company has identified Burnley, together with a number of 
other borough’s within Lancashire with a strong SME manufacturing centre, for a focussed 
programme funded by SPF following the cessation of ESIF funding in December 2023. 

 

It is proposed to fund a comprehensive package of business support, set out later in this 
application, that seeks to address the challenges and opportunities set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

ARE THERE ANY LOCAL CHALLENGES YOU FACE WHICH FALL UNDER THE PEOPLE AND 
SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? (In Scotland, Wales, and Northern Ireland this should also 
include challenges relating to Multiply) 
(If yes) Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 
 
Unemployment in Burnley (6.6%) is above both the Lancashire and national average (4.4%).  It is 
particularly high amongst women, the Pakistani/Bangladeshi population, young people (16-24) the 
over 50’s and those with complex, physical or mental health issues as well as those with substance 
abuse problems and victims of domestic abuse.  
  
Economic activity rates, those that are neither in employment nor unemployed, in Burnley are 
consistently above the Lancashire and national average.  Burnley also has a much higher 
proportion of people who don’t want a job, that is people who are neither in employment nor 
unemployed and do not want a job, with 92% if Burnley’s economically inactive falling into this 
category against 81.4% nationally.  That leaves 8% of Burnley’s economically inactive population 
who are not in employment but want a job but are not classed as unemployed because they have 
either not sought work in the last 4 weeks or are not available to start work.   
 
According to statistics from the Burnley Job Centre’s Economic Update in May 22, there are 1,823, 
18 – 24 year olds in Burnley that are currently claiming Universal Credit with 609 of these actively 
searching for work.   There are 11,609 people aged 25+ that are claiming Universal Credit with 
2,602 of those actively searching for work.  
  
21% of Burnley’s workforce have no qualifications, compared to just 7.5% for the North West and 
6.6% nationally, with demand for candidates with no qualifications forecast to drop between 2018 
and 2028, this presents a very real problem for Burnley’s economy.  
  
The employability market in Burnley has a value of at least £2,367,234 up to December 2023 (circa 
£131,513 per month) which includes both DWP and non DWP supported individuals.   At least 28 
people are employed to work on these programmes.  
  
In addition to the SPF funding made available, individuals that are engaged with DWP work 
programme activities in pursuit of finding employment will be funded under their programmes – this 
broadly relates to those individuals considered to be “work ready”.   
  
It is clear that funding via SPF should not support the above individuals but is to support those that 
are the most disadvantaged through the community and voluntary sector and our focus will be on 
those determined as economically inactive, facing greatest disadvantage, and not receiving support 
from the DWP.  We anticipate 85% will fall into this category, with the remaining 15% also classed 

Page 23



 

 

as economically inactive but may have some form of support, albeit not employment or work 
programmes related support from the DWP.   
 
There are currently 742 vacancies in Burnley as at the end of May 2022, and although the market 
for jobs is quite buoyant the number of unemployed people remains quite high at 6.6%,, although 
this is reducing since the height of the pandemic.   Apprenticeship numbers in Burnley have 
reduced by 40.5% from 2019 to 2021 and engagement with apprenticeships from the BAME 
community fell. Additional challenges include candidates with a lack of experience and/or skills for 
jobs and there is still a number of people dis-engaged around gaining work, maybe still nervous 
from Covid, or lacking in confidence having not been in work for a while.  Burnley has also seen a 
rise in the number of people not being retained in the workplace, including feedback from some of 
Burnley’s largest employers that new employees are not lasting more than a few weeks into a new 
job.   The local job centre has also reported claimants to be dis-engaged in the market place and 
have brought in new ways to engage such as bringing employers into the job centre to meet 
potential candidates.  
  
Challenges include:-  
  

• Some of the current ESF projects finish from Dec 2022 – leaving a gap in provision 
• Retaining the skills of staff delivering these projects so that their experience and knowledge 

is not lost 
• Restriction on funding will mean partners having to consider their operating models and 

efficiencies 
• Exclusion of groups within the community who miss out because they are not in a target 

group 
• Disconnect between employers and those looking for work 
• Current crowded market for employability support– difficult for people to navigate and hard 

to understand best support for them 
• Difficult to evaluate local outcomes and impact – information is not readily available 
• Fall in apprenticeship numbers from 2019 – 2021 of 40.5% one of the highest boroughs in 

Lancashire (5.5% reduction in BAME apprentices) 
• Rising number of vacancies – May 22 Burnley had 742 vacancies – Average of 4.23 

people per vacancy 
• High number of employees with no qualifications compared to regional/national figures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ARE THERE ANY LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES UNDER THE PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT 
PRIORITY THAT YOU INTEND TO SUPPORT? (In Scotland, Wales, and Northern Ireland this 
should also include challenges relating to Multiply) 
(If yes) Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 
 

 

Organisations that will be involved in a local collaboration care about working with Burnley 
Council to maximise the outcomes of the shared prosperity fund and thus forms a partnership in 
its truest sense enabling locally commissioned and locally managed projects that will be more 
responsive to the emerging and changing needs of our communities.  These organisations 
include the local Community & Voluntary Service, Princes Trust, and other smaller charitable, 
voluntary and third sector organisations such as New Era Enterprises and Lancashire Women.  
Burnley College and the University of Central Lancashire are also part of the partnership and 
compliment the economically inactive support with the support available to raise the level of 
skills/qualifications of individuals both in and out of work, via European funded projects, Adult 
Education Budget and so on. 

Page 24



 

 

  

Burnley has an existing Employment & Skills Group which is an open partnership and is 
engaged with providers of current ESF projects – those that are at risk once European funds 
come to an end.  

  

The group is also engaged with the Youth Hub and works in partnership with the DWP and 
others in the partnership to provide support to young people in the borough.  

  

The work of the Employment & Skills group is to identify and fill gaps of provision in the borough 
whilst working with partners to reach out into the community to work with those that are the most 
dis-engaged over a longer-term personalised programme of support. 

  

During the pandemic the Burnley Together Partnership was formed to initially support those in 
crisis, during our recovery stage more and more people in the community are now opening to 
other forms of wider wrap around support, including health & wellbeing, active lifestyles, financial 
support, mental health support and so on with the aim being to gradually move them into 
education/employment, at a time that is right for them, although this has created more demand 
on local support services that may not exist post European funding. 

  

UKSPF will allow for this work to continue to grow and build upon the foundations that have been 
laid and to continue to develop, on a local level, the services and support tailored to local needs.  
The risk is without the continuation and ability to build on this work we will experience not only a 
lack of provision but also lose valuable people with skills, knowledge, and experience of working 
with these groups.  Locally managed projects will also allow for a better evaluation process and 
collection of data/information to continue to allow programmes to meet the needs of the local 
community. 

  

Burnley has a wide spectrum of vibrant business sectors offering employment opportunities in a 
range of industries. Burnley also has a reputation as a regional centre of excellence for the 
manufacturing and aerospace industries.  Businesses in Burnley are committed to the town as 
demonstrated by the unique Burnley Bondholder network which provides a base for us to work to 
close the gap between job opportunities and those seeking work, whilst also using these 
employers to engage with local Schools & Colleges to help raise aspirations and awareness of 
the local jobs market. When comparing vacancy rates Burnley’s year to date shows 4.098 jobs 
compared to last year to May 2021 when there were 2,792.  In comparing this to the 
neighbouring borough of Pendle their respective figures were 1.360 year to date with 1,055 in 
the year previous to May 2021. The number of vacancies in Burnley show that the opportunities 
do exist to work locally and the top 3 sectors with the most vacancies are wholesale/retail, 
healthcare, and manufacturing. 

  

Opportunities include: -   

  

• Provision of a more tailored/bespoke employability support 
• 1-2-1 caseworker support 
• Personalised additional wrap around support (including social prescribers) 
• Expertise of a local partnership of experience, skills & knowledge 

Page 25



 

 

• Removal of confusion in the marketplace by having a one-stop-shop 
• Work with local employers to support their skills needs for current and future workforce’s 
• Provide a pathway to Multiply 
• Introducing self-employment as an option for progression, alongside 

education/employment 
• Streamlined switch from ESF to SPF with no disruption to the client groups 
• Community outreach to engage with the most-dis-engaged 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Interventions 

In this section, we will ask you about: 

• Interventions you’ve chosen for each year of funding 
• Outcomes you want to deliver 
• Any interventions that are not listed here 
• How these interventions fall under the UKSPF investment priorities, and your 

rationale for them 
• Interventions not included in our list will be assessed before being approved, where 

you will need to show a clear rationale, how the intervention is value for money, what 
outcomes it will deliver and how you will monitor and evaluate the intervention. This 
may include a theory of change or logic chain. 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES YOU WANT TO DELIVER UNDER THE COMMUNITIES AND 
PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY? SELECT ALL THAT APPLY. 
Outcome Tick if 

applicable 
Jobs created  
Jobs safeguarded  
Increased footfall X 
Increased visitor numbers  
Reduced vacancy rates x 
Greenhouse gas reductions  
Improved perceived/experienced accessibility X 
Improved perception of facilities/amenities X 
Increased number of properties better protected from flooding and coastal erosion  
Increased users of facilities / amenities x 
Improved perception of facility/infrastructure project X 
Increased use of cycleways or paths   X 
Increase in Biodiversity  
Increased affordability of events/entry  
Improved perception of safety  
Reduction in neighbourhood crime  
Improved engagement numbers X 
Improved perception of events  
Increased number of web searches for a place  
Volunteering numbers as a result of support  
Number of community-led arts, cultural, heritage and creative programmes as a result 
of support 

X 

Page 26



 

 

Increased take up of energy efficiency measures  
Increased number of projects arising from funded feasibility studies  X 
Number of premises with improved digital connectivity  
None of the above  

 

SELECT THE INTERVENTIONS YOU INTEND TO USE WHICH MEET THE COMMUNITIES AND 
PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY. YOU CAN SELECT AS MANY AS YOU LIKE. 
Intervention 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the Prospectus.  
E1 
E2 
E3 
E4  
E5 
E6 
E9 
E10 
E11 
E14 
 

 

DO YOU PLAN TO USE ANY INTERVENTIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE COMMUNITIES AND 
PLACE LIST? 
State the name of each of these additional interventions and a brief description of each of 
these 
 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
Explain how each intervention meets the Communities and Place investment priority. Give 
evidence where possible, including why it is value money and the outcomes you want to 
deliver. 
 
 
 
N/a 
 
 
 
Do you consider that any of these interventions may provide a subsidy to potential 
recipients of the funding under the intervention’s planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No  X 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the intervention is a subsidy and 
any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
 
N/a 
 
 
 
 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

 

HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Describe these projects, including how they fall under the Communities and Place 
investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 
 
Community and Place Grant Scheme  
In alignment with Burnley Council’s priorities and strategies we are proposing to introduce a small 
grants program to support community groups and 3rd sector organisations to deliver a range of 
projects around improving place, accessibility, healthy lives, green spaces, arts & culture in line 
with chosen interventions. We will appoint Burnley Pendle & Rossendale CVS to act as our delivery 
partner and who are best placed within the community to have a real grass roots level of 
understanding of need across all areas of the community.  BPRCVS are well established in Burnley 
and provides pathways to support residents, businesses and organisations across the borough, 
including voluntary, community and faith type organisations.  They have delivered many grant 
programmes and are a registered charity and company limited by guarantee.  They currently 
deliver a small grant programme on behalf of the East Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group, 
Eric Wright Construction, Gannow Big Local and Cliviger Wind Farm.   They are also currently 
working with the National Academy for Social Prescribing and working on programmes that support 
thriving communities.  Further they work with Sport England, Natural England and the Arts Council 
and are able to provide additional support and services via these organisations.  BPRCVS will be 
given the task of engaging with interested parties to receive applications for grants ranging from 
£5,000 to £20,000 that fit with and meet the outcomes/outputs for E1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9 10, 11 & 14 
which include arts & heritage, sports facilities and leagues, green spaces and projects to design out 
crime to name a few.  This project will start from Year 2 – 2023/24 and run until March 2025, with 
break clauses built in as necessary for closure by this date. 
 
Parks, Green Spaces and Sports facilities. 
 
It is proposed to implement three projects that will enhance parks, green spaces and sports 
facilities in the borough.  These include: 
 
Padiham Riverside Green Space Project – This project will see the former BAXI site be remediated 
to provide circa 5ha of informal green/blue infrastructure linked to a significant flood resilience 
scheme that is already underway.  The area will include wildflower meadows, some tree planting 
where appropriate, and some wetland areas together with improvements to the very popular 
riverside walk and bridleway.  The project will take place in Year 3 following the completion of flood 
defence works and meets intervention E3. 
 
Barden Track - This local athletics track currently is underused within the community as it is in need 
of significant repairs and improvements. Some of the local schools and clubs do use the facility but 
it is limited and there are some difficulties in maintaining the site safely and providing access which 
has left some members of the community feeling excluded. Once some initial works have been 
undertaken the facility will be more accessible and will be used more frequently by more Schools & 
Clubs as well as community groups and new users, in particular there is a desire to make the track 
and facilities accessible to wheelchair uses and those that do wheelchair cycling.  Improvements 
needed include repairs to the track, spectator area changing rooms as well as some security 
improvements and additional floodlights together with better signage from the main road.  A new 
electronic booking and gate system will also be introduced together with a community 
engagement/outreach plan within the immediate neighbourhood to improve community access. The 
scheme is subject to securing match funding..  This will be Year 2 spend – 2023/24 and this piece 
of work meets intervention E10. 
 
Play areas and Wheeled Sports Facilities – The Council’s play strategy has identified that there are 
17 play area facilities requiring improvements and an un-met demand for pump tracks and other 
wheeled sports facilities in need of updating and replacing.  It is proposed to use UKSPF funding to 
implement a programme of improvements in year 1 and 2.  The proposals fits with intervention E3 
and E10 
 

Page 28



 

 

Investing in Town and Neighbourhood Shopping Centres 
 
The development of a Youth Zone is identified as a key priority in the Burnley Town Centre 
Masterplan.  SPF will be allocated under E14 to support a feasibility study and detailed design work 
for the project.  Should a bid to the Youth Investment Fund be successful this will provide a great 
brand-new facility for Burnley and will very much be an open access facility with the latest state of 
the art facilities and specialist youth services embedded as part of the offer to young people aged 8 
– 18.  This will be Year 1 revenue spend 2022/23.  
 
 
Lower St James’ Street Heritage Action Zone Extension -  In 2020 Burnley Council was successful 
in securing £1.2m from Historic England for a Heritage Action Zone in part of Burnley Town Centre 
known as Lower St James Street.   The project aims to work with property owners to restore 
disused and underused properties with significant heritage value back into use as well as create a 
Creative Arts and Industries Hub.  Build cost inflation is having a negative impact on the project and 
additional UKSPF funding will enable the scheme to deliver as planned, creating a vibrant cultural 
quarter linking the town centre with the new University Campus.   The HAZ extension will be 
delivered in Year 3 2024/25  and fits with interventions E1 and E6 
 
Colne Road Neighbourhood Shopping Centre Enhancements - Colne Road is a main arterial route 
into Burnley and is also a neighbourhood shopping area for the Daneshouse and Queensgate 
Areas, both of which are some of the most deprived in the Country.  The area has a vibrant and 
varied independent retail community but suffers from a poor environment and lacks identity.  Car 
parking, speeding cars and poor pedestrian safety are also issues.  It is proposed to work with the 
Colne Road Business Community to identify a range of environmental interventions to address the 
identified issues.  Year 3 spend 2024/25 - E1 intervention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the funding 
under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No  
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects constitute 
a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
Awaiting legal advice and guidance 
 

 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES YOU WANT TO DELIVER UNDER THE SUPPORTING LOCAL 
BUSINESS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? SELECT ALL THAT APPLY. 
Outcome Tick if 

applicable 
Jobs created X 
Jobs safeguarded X 
Increased footfall  
Increased visitor numbers  
Reduced vacancy rates  
Greenhouse gas reductions X 
Number of new businesses created X 
Improved perception of markets  
Increased business sustainability  

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

Increased number of businesses supported X 
Increased amount of investment  
Improved perception of attractions  
Number of businesses introducing new products to the firm X 
Number of organisations engaged in new knowledge transfer activity X 
Number of premises with improved digital connectivity  
Number of businesses adopting new to the firm technologies or processes X 
Number of new to market products X 
Number of R&D active businesses  
Increased number of innovation active SMEs  
Number of businesses adopting new or improved products or services X 
Increased number of innovation plans developed X 
Number of early stage firms which increase their revenue following support  
Number of businesses engaged in new markets X 
Number of businesses engaged in new markets  
Number of businesses increasing their export capability X 
Increased amount of low or zero carbon energy infrastructure installed X 
Number of businesses with improved productivity X 
Increased number of projects arising from funded feasibility studies   
Increased number of properties better protected from flooding and coastal erosion  
None of the above  

 

SELECT THE INTERVENTIONS YOU INTEND TO USE WHICH MEET THE SUPPORTING 
LOCAL BUSINESS INVESTMENT PRIORITY. YOU CAN SELECT AS MANY AS YOU LIKE. 
Intervention 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the Prospectus.  
 
E18 
E19 
E23 
E28 
E29 
 
 
 
 

 

DO YOU PLAN TO USE ANY INTERVENTIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE SUPPORTING LOCAL 
BUSINESS LIST? 
State the name of each of these additional interventions and a brief description of each of 
these 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
Explain how each intervention meets the Supporting Local Business investment priority. 
Give evidence where possible, including why it is value money and the outcomes you want 
to deliver. 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

N/A 
 
 
 
Do you consider that any of these interventions may provide a subsidy to potential 
recipients of the funding under the intervention’s planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No  X 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the intervention is a subsidy and 
any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

 

HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS WHICH FALL UNDER THE SUPPORTING 
LOCAL BUSINESS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Describe these projects, including how they fall under the Supporting Local Business 
investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 
 
BOOST Lancashire – this is pan Lancashire business support project in collaboration with at least 
10 other local authorities, led by Lancashire County Council, with Growth Lancashire.as the 
delivery partner., BOOST will provide a generic business support offer ensuring a universal service 
of enquiry brokerage and signposting, basic boot camps for new start-up businesses and mentoring 
for more established businesses. This service will provide additional bespoke support offered to 
high growth businesses including 121 coaching, Peer to Peer Board networks, accelerated growth 
workshops and access to online materials focussed on developing leadership teams, growing new 
markets, accessing finance, and improving productivity. Under UK SPF it is proposed to introduce a 
new element to the programme with each borough having a local “animator”, in Burnley he/she will 
be based within Burnley Council’s business team, to amplify and encourage more conversations 
around business support engaging with local businesses and support providers as appropriate.  
This project builds on 10 years of hard work to bring business support into a single conversation 
and one that simplifies the complex routes into support that all too often put off businesses from 
seeking help and will also remove some of the rigid eligibility conditions around previous ESF 
projects such as the “12 hour” support rule and will also include retail businesses, whom typically 
have been excluded from ESF projects. This project aligns with a numberof interventions under this 
priority, particularly around strengthening local entrepreneurial eco-systems and supporting 
businesses at all stages of their development from start-up to growth as well as providing additional 
wrap around support as needed.  This ultimately will impact on Burnley’s local economy and drive 
employment growth as well as providing advice, resource, training, coaching and mentorship in a 
format and timescale best suited to a business's needs. Supports E23 
 
 
Lancashire Innovation Program - A pan-Lancashire specific Innovation project which will streamline 
the knowledge, expertise and facilities of the three HEI’s in Lancashire – Lancaster University, 
UCLAN and Edge Hill University (listed below) with the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) as 
the delivery partnerprovide in-depth specialist innovation support alongside scientists, placements, 
labs, facilities, and industry practitioners to support growth and productivity.  This project 
collaborates with 3 Universities including UCLan, Lancaster and Edge Hill with delivery being 
predominantly within UCLan’s new facilities in Burnley, although there may be occasion where a 
business needs to go to the other Universities to access specific equipment.  This project will 
create a single, easy to access, innovation programme into one knowledge exchange resource and 
will target key innovation missions designed to harness growth and technology support 
opportunities based on evidence from the Innovation Plan on key local capabilities aligned to 
growth opportunities. The subject areas include Cyber & Digital (the national cyber force has 
recently set up base in Lancashire), Energy, low carbon & sustainable technologies, future mobility 

Page 31

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

and manufacturing and data driven innovation for scaling growth, productivity, and highly skilled 
employment.   This project will be a first in offering a combined innovation package building on 
existing innovation eco-system and supporting increased investment in R&D, Made Smarter 
Adoption, decarbonisation, and supporting businesses at all stages of their development whilst 
providing opportunity to increase productivity, growth and employment opportunities. Supports E18, 
E19, E23 &E29 
 
International Trade - A project providing International Trade support for businesses in Burnley will 
operate as part of a pan-Lancashire collaboration to provide a central access point for businesses 
either trading internationally or wishing to trade internationally, helping them to realise their export 
potential and increase international sales by a package of consultancy, training, and events.  This 
project will also provide support and educate businesses after the transition out of the single market 
and assist in exploring global opportunities.  An initial analysis of the business will be carried out 
and then a package of support put in place. This project will be delivered centrally by the East 
Lancashire Chamber of Commerce based in Accrington as the delivery partner, with a local 
presence and activity taking place in Burnley as required for locally held events, 1-2-1's, workshops 
sessions and so on. Supports E23 & E28 
 
 
Net zero & decarbonisation project  - a pan-Lancashire collaboration will be delivered by East 
Lancashire Chamber and their Low Carbon Team in conjunction with UCLAN and the AMRC.  This 
will provide a package of support to those firms with the highest carbon footprint, analysing 
environmental impact and will include initial analysis, baseline support, best practice support and 
in-depth decarbonisation planning and net zero future proofing covering interventions E18, E19, 
E23 & E29 
 
 
Manufacturing Advice Service - This project, delivered by Greater Manchester Growth Company, 
will provide 1-2-1 support for all sectors of manufacturing in Burnley which would; align seamlessly 
with Made Smarter in identifying opportunities for digitalisation of IR4.0 tech to drive productivity, 
support net zero transition with opportunities in new emerging green growth markets, supporting 
productivity and competitiveness of manufacturing businesses through the identification of R&D 
opportunities for new markets and improving value adding activities leading to growth in jobs; 
manufacturing workshops for leaders around capacity, tools & techniques to drive change and 
productivity and a possible grant scheme to overcome any specialist barriers into new markets – 
This project will provide Burnley Council will a named individual specifically working on the above 
elements with businesses in the Burnley area. Supports E18 & E29 
 
 
 
Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the funding 
under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects constitute 
a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
Awaiting legal advice and guidance 
 
 

 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES YOU WANT TO DELIVER UNDER THE PEOPLE AND SKILLS 
INVESTMENT PRIORITY? SELECT ALL THAT APPLY. 
Outcome Tick if 

applicable 
Number of economically inactive individuals in receipt of benefits they are 
entitled to following support 

X 

Page 32

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

Increased active or sustained participants of UKSPF beneficiaries in 
community groups [and/or] increased employability through development of 
interpersonal skills 

 

Increased proportion of participants with basic skills (English, maths, digital 
and ESOL) 

 

Number of people in supported employment [and] number of people engaging 
with mainstream healthcare services 

? 

Number of people sustaining engagement with keyworker support and 
additional services 

X 

Number of people engaged in job-searching following support X 
Number of people in employment, including self-employment, following 
support 

X 

Number of people sustaining employment for 6 months  
Increased employment, skills and/or UKSPF objectives incorporated into local 
area corporate governance 

 

Number of people in education/training X 
Increased number of people with basic skills (English, maths, digital and 
ESOL) 

 

Fewer people facing structural barriers into employment and into skills 
provision 

 

Increased number of people familiarised with employers’ expectations, 
including, standards of behaviour in the workplace 

 

Fewer people facing structural barriers into employment and into skills 
provision 

 

Number of people gaining a qualification or completing a course following 
support 

 

Number of people gaining qualifications, licences, and skills  
Number of economically active individuals engaged in mainstream skills 
education, and training. 

 

Number of people engaged in life skills support following interventions  
Number of people with proficiency in pre-employment and interpersonal skills 
(relationship, organisational and anger-management, interviewing, CV and job 
application writing) 

 

Multiply only - Increased number of adults achieving maths qualifications up to, and 
including, Level 2.  

 

Multiply only - Increased number of adults participating in maths qualifications and 
courses up to, and including, Level 2. 

 

None of the above  
 

SELECT THE INTERVENTIONS YOU INTEND TO USE WHICH MEET THE PEOPLE AND 
SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY. YOU CAN SELECT AS MANY AS YOU LIKE. 
Intervention 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the Prospectus.  
E33 
E35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 

 

DO YOU PLAN TO USE ANY INTERVENTIONS NOT INCLUDED IN THE PEOPLE AND SKILLS 
LIST? 
State the name of each of these additional interventions and a brief description of each of 
these 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
Explain how each intervention meets the People and Skills investment priority. Give 
evidence where possible, including why it is value money and the outcomes you want to 
deliver. 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
Do you consider that any of these interventions may provide a subsidy to potential 
recipients of the funding under the intervention’s planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No  X 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the intervention is a subsidy and 
any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
N/A 
 

 

ENGLAND ONLY: People and Skills interventions can only be used in 2022-2023 and 
2023-2024 if you have identified a local voluntary and community provision, previously 
supported by the European Social Fund, at risk of closure. If you have not identified a 
suitable provision, you will not be able to select interventions for 2022-2023 and 2023-
2024 and your investment plan will not be approved. 
HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS for 2024-2025 WHICH FALL UNDER THE 
PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Yes 
Describe the projects for 2024-25, including how they fall under the People and Skills 
investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 
 
Our plan is to deliver a package of tailored support that is developed in conjunction with an 
individual and at a time that is right for that individual.  Our focus will be on those who are classed 
as economically inactive neither employed nor unemployed and will be a mix of support for those 
who want a job but have not sought work in the last four weeks/are unavailable to start work or 
those that are the most dis-engaged maybe with additional barriers to employment such as mental 
health.  Via the Burnley Skills & Employment group, with Calico as the lead partner, and the 
community/voluntary sector we will deliver support targeted to the following groups via 
caseworkers: - 
 

• Young People – who continue to be most at risk and vulnerable 
• Over 50’s - deemed to be a high-risk category 
• BAME communities – generally more disadvantaged community with regards to 

employability & skills 
• Long term unemployed – a large proportion of the economically inactive group that want to 

return to work 
 

Page 34

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

Within these groups the project will focus on women, particularly those in the BAME community, 
those with disabilities and those classed as or at risk of becoming NEET. The project will provide a 
mix of 1-2-1 interventions together with workshops and events to support people into education, 
training, employment, or self-employment and will include active work search support, peer to peer 
learning, self-discovery & life skills, health & wellbeing support around getting more active and 
promoting the importance of work to help people live healthier and more independent lives, mental 
health support whether light touch or more in-depth, work on behaviours and supporting those with 
complex pathway’s such as substance misuse, and accommodation issues or criminal records, as 
well as budgeting/finance sessions, confidence & resilience building and will incorporate some 
volunteering & work experience opportunities. 
 
The project will be based at the existing employment & skills hub in Burnley Town Centre where the 
partners delivering on the current ESF projects are based so this gives us a good continuation of 
delivery and support and enables the impact of the loss of skilled and experienced staff and 
resources to be minimised.  
 
As this project will be delivered locally in Burnley it will enable better evaluation of the impact and 
effectiveness of interventions, enabling future investment in things that work. 
 
This project provides support to groups of people that will not benefit from the DWP package of 
support that is available and there is a danger that these groups will miss out and fall through the 
gaps, given that these are already the most dis-engaged and in-active groups it is vital that support 
continues for them to avoid this situation becoming worse and ultimately creating a greater strain 
on other support systems.  One of the key elements will be working with the social prescriber's link 
workers in Burnley to help support individuals within the community and help alleviate the 
pressures on the health system and joining up with the Activity Co-ordinator's from Burnley Leisure 
around becoming more active.  
 
Ultimately, we will aim to create a better everyday life for many people that are supported through 
this project with the support available will mean that no door will be the wrong door for them to walk 
through. 
 
This project supports E33 & E35 
 
Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the funding 
under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects constitute 
a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
 
Awaiting legal advice and guidance 
 
 
 
 
HAVE YOU IDENTIFIED A LOCAL VOLUNTARY PROVISION AT RISK AS PART OF YOUR 
PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITIES? 
Yes No 
(If Yes) Describe the local voluntary provision at risk and your rationale for supporting it. 
 
There is a real risk that activity targeted at residents of Burnley will suffer a gap or even cease  
once the current ESF projects conclude.  This will impact on local providers, including the voluntary 
and community sector who engage with residents at a real grass roots level, and this will impact on 
the boroughs ability to drive up employment and skills.   Given that priorities will include re-
engaging and supporting the most disadvantaged and economically inactive, supporting young 
people at risk or already NEET and supporting healthier workforces the following projects and 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

organisations will potentially be those providers that will need to cut their cloth accordingly by 
reducing services, making staff redundant or even closing altogether. 
 
Burnley, Pendle & Rossendale Community & Voluntary Service (BPRCVS) – this is a well-
established community & voluntary sector group that has delivered European funding projects over 
many years.  Their strength is being able to assign a case-worker to really hand hold an individual 
and help them to overcome whatever barriers they may have.  They also manage the social 
prescriber provision in Burnley and are well placed to provide support on the health/wellbeing 
agenda and together with Burnley Leisure who can support on physical activity this will offer a 
really good service to the community with staff with many years experience and skills sets.  In 
addition, they host a young carers project supporting those aged 8 – 18 who would be one of the 
target groups for the skills & employability programme, particularly around raising aspirations and 
employability prospects. They currently deliver the Strengthening Communities ESF project. 
 
New Era Enterprises are another unique small organisation that is well established and delivers 
some very powerful support, They are very engaged with school leavers and often support them in 
an environment where they feel safe and not overwhelmed.  They again can offer real hands-on 
support, peer groups etc and focus on life skills, confidence & resilience as well as delivering skills 
support around maths and English, budgeting, cooking and so on via an alternative employment 
programme.  They also help with volunteering opportunities, have a family hub and a health & 
wellbeing hub all of which support and connect directly into the local employability support that we 
plan to offer.  It would be detrimental to lose this experience and potentially skilled staff.  This work 
again contributes to our plan to support those who are classed as or at risk of becoming NEET, 
those looking for volunteering opportunities as well as supporting all those core skills and 
confidence sessions that really make a difference. They currently deliver the Time for You ESF 
project as well as the Invest in Youth & Changing Futures projects 
 
Child Action North West, Calico, Lancashire Women and New Era Enterprises all deliver on the 
Invest in Youth, Age of Opportunity & Changing Futures programmes – a summary of each project 
is below:-  
 
Age of Opportunity 
Meets the needs of over 50s who would like to work but are unable to without additional skills or 
support, particularly those who are most at risk of social exclusion, for example; due to isolation, 
digital barriers, mental or physical health difficulties, homelessness or being full-time carer 
 
Invest in Youth 
Aims to transform the futures of young people aged between 15 and 24 who would like to work but 
are unable to without additional skills or support, specifically focussed on those young people who 
are not in employment, education or training (NEET), or at risk of becoming NEET - participants 
receive intensive support from a Key Worker to be able to engage in work readiness activity based 
on their individual interests and the barriers they face around entering work or further learning, the 
Key Worker guides the participant to achieve milestones agreed within their personal action plan.  
 
Changing Futures  
Supports people facing multiple and complex barriers to employment. All participants are 
unemployed or economically inactive and are at high risk of social exclusion, such as people from 
BAME communities, people with physical or mental health problems and people with learning 
difficulties. Coaches help participants to understand their own abilities, skills and interests to 
identify ways to help address their multiple barriers to economic activity. 
 
Princes Trust – deliver on More Positive Together & More Positive Together STEPS – these 
projects provide a dedicated mentor to carry out an initial assessment of personal need and then 
develops an action plan to help overcome these barriers to employment. Individuals have access to 
training programmes, community activities, volunteering, and work experience.   The More Positive 
Together projects supports the most disadvantaged/furthest away from the job market, whereas the 
More Positive Together STEPS supports those deemed nearer to the job market. 
 
Lancashire Women are a specialist service supporting women.  Their work includes some specific 
support around accessing first step courses/training and volunteering opportunities.  They tend to 

Page 36



 

 

work with women who have complex needs including substance misuse, domestic abuse, mental 
and physical health.   They also run life skills and confidence cafes where they work with women to 
plan a journey for their future as well as gentle self-discovery sessions to enable them to make 
positive change in a supportive space.  Given that supporting women is one of our priorities, again 
it would be detrimental to lose such experience in Burnley.  They currently deliver on the Changing 
Futures & Age of Opportunity ESF project, More Positive Together & More Positive Together 
STEPS, as well as CF03 – Achieve and Smallwood – LifeSkills projects 
 
As you can see from reading the above there is cross-over between many of the traditional 
European funded projects.   We very much see UKSPF as an opportunity to streamline local 
provision and bring this all together under one true partnership arrangement, whilst removing the 
confusion in the marketplace for referral organisations and more importantly the end user of the 
service for who it is often unclear where they should go.    We also see this as an opportunity to go 
out into the community and engage with the most dis-engaged in a non-traditional way – taking 
services to them rather than reliant on them attending provision in settings that are not always 
conducive to their needs and ability to open-up.  
 
 
 
 
Provide the European Social Fund Project Names and Project References for this voluntary 
and community provision at risk. 
 

• Age of Opportunity 
 

• Changing Futures 
 

• Invest in Youth 
 

• Smallwood-LifeSkills 
 

• More Positive Together 
 

• More Positive Together STEPS  
 

• Action for Jobs - Strengthening Communities 
 

• Upskilling the Health & Social Care Workforce 
 
 
Need to get project reference numbers  
 
What year do you intend to fund these projects? Select all that apply. 
2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 
Describe the projects for 2022-2023 and 2023-2024, including how they fall under the People 
and Skills investment priority and the location of the proposed project. 
The Invest in Youth, Changing Futures, Age of Opportunity & Smallwood-Lifeskills projects are all 
due to end by June 2023, with some delivery finishing sooner.  2022/23 will need to see the 
continuation of support around this provision to avoid a gap in support and loss of 
experienced/skilled staff.  The project outline given in the above section will be mirrored in 2022/23 
but on a smaller scale to complement other ESF projects that are still running.  The project of 
support will include 1-2-1 caseworker support, outreach & engagement in the community, 
monitoring of an individual's journey to ensure progression as appropriate.  The target market will 
include the priority groups as previously mentioned, i.e women, BAME, disabled, long-term 
unemployed etc.  Thereafter support will continue as above but interventions will be increased as 
ESF tails off.  
 
The Strengthening communities & Upskilling the Health & Social Care workforce projects, both 
come to an end in December 2023, although some delivery stops in Sept 2023 – for the 6 months 

Page 37



 

 

to April 2024 we will provide specific support around upskilling workers in the health & social care 
sector through our local CVS.  This sector is very important to Burnley given the developments and 
expansion of the local hospital, who are the largest employer in town – this is set to grow as they 
expand.  On top of that the University of Central Lancashire have recently developed a specific 
training suite and offer of qualifications to train the doctors and nurses of the future in Burnley – the 
support we can give at the lower scale/entry level will enable individuals to progress their careers at 
a time when the local job market need will rise. 
 
More Positive Together and More Positive Together STEPS will come to an end in December 2023 
and therefore this support will kick in for SPF as part of the 2024/2025 year when funding is 
included within SPF.  In Burnley, these projects are delivered by Calico, The Princes Trust & 
Lancashire Women 
 
The Youth Futures Fund, which has recently been awarded to Burnley as one of 8 pilot areas, runs 
for 18 months to Dec 2023 and is a research-based project to understand the eco-system around 
youth unemployment, specifically on the most dis-advantaged group of those unemployed for 6 
months plus. This will run alongside our support and will build data and information which will help 
to inform our delivery, to young people, for Jan 2024 – March 2025.   
 
We will have the opportunity to be considered for phase 2 of the Youth Futures Fund from Jan 24 
which is implementation of research findings.  Only 4 of the 8 pilot schemes will receive funding for 
year 2, so we will need to align any provision in the final year of SPF depending on other 
funding/programmes available. 
Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the funding 
under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects constitute 
a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
Awaiting legal advice and guidance 

 

SCOTLAND, WALES & NORTHERN IRELAND ONLY 
HAVE YOU ALREADY IDENTIFIED ANY PROJECTS WHICH FALL UNDER THE PEOPLE AND 
SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Yes No 
Describe the projects, including how they fall under the People and Skills investment 
priority and the location of the proposed project. 
 
 
 
 
 
Do you consider these projects may provide a subsidy to potential recipients of the funding 
under the proposed planned activity? 
All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control as set out in 
the guidance. 
Yes No 
Detail the assessment you undertook to consider whether the proposed projects constitute 
a subsidy and any specific measures you will take to make sure the subsidy is permitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


 

 

 

Approach to delivery and governance 

In this section, we will ask you about: 

• Structures you have in place to support delivery 
• Support you have from stakeholders and the local community 
• How you’ve engaged with MPs as part of your investment plan 
• Opportunities you have identified to work with other places 

Places need to show how MPs that cover the lead local authority have been engaged on the 
investment plan and whether they support it. More detail on the role of MPs can be found 
here. 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND SUPPORT 
Have you engaged with any of the following as part of your investment plan? Select all that 
apply. 
Public sector organisations X Private sector organisations X Civil society organisations X 
Describe how you have engaged with any of these organisations. Give examples where 
possible. 
Strategic Context  
In 2020 1 Burnley Council engaged with a wide range of stakeholders through three task groups 
based around – People (Employment and Skills Group), Place and Business, to develop an 
Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy and a Community Recovery Strategy.  The task groups 
involved a range of stakeholders including local businesses and 3rd sector organisations. The 
groups were tasked with identifying key challenges and key interventions.  These strategies and 
interventions form the basis of this Investment Strategy.  The task groups all report to the Economic 
Recovery and Growth Board who have been engaged in the investment plan. 
 
Communities and Place 
As set out in the above paragraph the Economic Recovery and Growth Plan, developed by the 
PLACE task group, building on the Burnley Town Centre masterplan have been engaged in 
identifying priorities for UKSPF and other funding streams. 
 
Burnley Council is responsible for delivering many place based interventions.  A cross 
departmental workshop has been held to review the interventions and potential key priorities 
identified in various council strategies, but particularly building on the Green Spaces and Play 
Strategies. 
 
We have consulted with Burnley Linked, a very strong network of community & voluntary 
organisations in Burnley and has over 200 members who meet regularly to share best practice, 
introduce new projects and build relationships/network.  
 
Burnley Together is a partnership of public, private & voluntary sector organisations set up at the 
start of the pandemic to support people in crisis and whose remit has now developed to include 
additional wrap around support for its residents such as health & wellbeing and other community 
support. 
 
 
 
Supporting Businesses 
Lancashire County Council has led on a County wide engagement process in terms of the 
Supporting Business and Employment and Skills priorities reflecting the existing County wide 
delivery structures.  Burnley Council & 13 other local authorities have come together to listen to a 
range of pan-Lancashire wide proposals from a number of potential delivery partners (listed below) 
covering Supporting Business and Employment and Skills priorities.  An initial written proposal was 
presented to us and then representatives attended a presentation and Q&A session. From this 
initial process and then individual consultations with the potential delivery partners, we have 

Page 39



 

 

identified a range of projects to collaborate on with other local authorities across Lancashire. The 
presentations were from organisations including the Universities, the Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) the AMRC, the local Chamber of Commerce, Selnet & Active Lancashire – a full list of 
organisations is included at the end of this section for reference. 
 
Employment and Skills 
We have conducted an impact assessment with the providers of employment & skills provision in 
Burnley which included voluntary & community groups, such as Calico, CVS, New Era Enterprises, 
The Princes Trust, Lancashire Women, Burnley College and Participation Works.  This allowed us 
to understand the current ESF funded delivery, the cost, resource, and impact of the project not 
continuing post European funding.  Following this feedback we further consulted with the chair of 
the employment & skills group,, and a workshop session has been held to collaborate with partners 
on delivery & support based on local need.  
 
Meetings have been held with the DWP at Strategic Partnership level to understand the support 
being provided as part of the governments, Plan for Jobs initiative and what the support may look 
like post European funds – this is to ensure that any offer we have around people & skills does not 
duplicate the existing DWP support. 
 
We have also consulted with the following groups/boards as part of our consultation work to take 
into account their local knowledge, experience and thoughts on how the interventions best fit the 
need of Burnley as a town. .These consultations took the form of general meetings, formal steering 
group meetings as well as additional conversations following the meetings to discuss specific 
aspects or elements.    
Officers and members at Burnley Borough Council have also been engaged in the development of 
the Investment Plan.  The Investment Plan was presented to the Council’s Scrutiny Committee 
prior to submission to the Executive for approval. 
A full list of all the organisations/groups that we have engaged with is below:-  
 
Active Lancashire  
AMRC  
BEIS  
BFC in the Community  
BOOST  
BPR CVS  
Burnley College  
Burnley Council  
Burnley Football Club in the Community 
Burnley Leisure  
Burnley Together 
Calico  
Canal and Rivers Trust 
Child Action Northwest  
DWP  
East Lancs Chamber  
ED Officer Network  
Edge Hill University  
Groundwork/Newground  
Growth Company   
Growth Lancashire  
Inspira 
Lancashire Innovation Board 
Lancashire Adult Learning  
Lancs County Council  
Lancs Skills Hub/LEP  
Lancaster University  

Page 40



 

 

Lancashire Women  
LEDDG  
Marketing Lancashire  
New Era Enterprises  
North West Lancashire Chamber  
Onside 
Participation Works 
Princes Trust  
Selnet  
Thrive/Employment & Skills Steering Group  
UCLan 
Youth Employment UK 
Summarise the governance structures you have in place, including how any advisory panels 
or associated partnership groups are made up 
 
The programme will be managed by Burnley Borough Council.  An SPF Project Manager has 
already been appointed with responsibility to develop the Investment Plan, complete negotiations, 
commission services and to monitor and evaluate the programme throughout its term.  
 
We have an existing partnership board – The Economy & Growth Recovery Board - comprising of 
local and regional stakeholders, civil society groups, businesses, and other organisations.  We will 
utilise this existing board to provide governance for our SPF programme.  As this board already 
comprises of the relevant bodies who are already engaged it provides a strong overlap with the 
delivery of the Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy.   The Economy & Growth Recovery 
Board is made up of the following members: - 

• · Burnley Borough Council 
• · Burnley College 
• · UCLAN 
• · East Lancashire Chamber of Commerce 
• · Department for Work and Pensions 
• · Burnley Football Club 
• · Lancashire County Council 
• · Chair of Burnley Bondholders 
• · Burnley Business Improvement District 
• · Five private sector members 
• . Canal and Rivers Trust 
• · Community and Voluntary sector member 
• · Local MP 

 
The Board’s role was initially to bring together key partners from the public and private sectors to 
respond cohesively to the immediate challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, and the 
initial focus of the Board was to review, re-focus, and re-purpose existing initiatives and 
programmes so that they can be more effectively delivered to support the Recovery phase of the 
borough’s strategy; ‘Burnley’s New Economy – A Strategy for Recovery and Growth’.  However, the 
Board also ensures a focus on the borough’s long-term economic recovery as Government seeks 
to overcome the impact and on-going challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Board will also 
support business growth and innovation, productivity increases, up-skilling, and leverage public and 
private investment through combining and co-ordinating their collective resources.Given that the 
Interventions chosen within the Investment Plan align to the Burnley  Economic Recovery and 
Growth Strategy and the taskforce groups, it makes sense that the same group who set these also 
govern those under UKSPF to ensure consistency and relevance within the borough.  
 
This board will enable transparency, sharing of best practice and knowledge for governance and 
will meet regularly.  The group is an open partnership with equal representation offered to each 
member, ensuring each members' voice has an equal weight.  Board representation is at a very 
senior level.  Any changes in the interventions will be determined by the board as appropriate. The 
Board meets quarterly. 

Page 41



 

 

 
The Economic Recovery and Growth board endorsed this approach and the Investment Plan at its 
meeting on 18th July 2022. 
In terms of any organisations that we partner with – we will expect them to outline their governance 
structures and how the partnership groups have been made up as part of their initial proposal’s and 
to provide us with regular updates from their own meetings where UKSPF will be an agenda item. 
 
We will establish a Panel of experts from within the Council and other organisations to assess and 
carry out due dilligence on detailed proposals.  The Council will follow the Council’s proceedures 
for grant giving and/or entering into Service Levels Agreement.  Final approval of funding based on 
panel recommendations,  to projects and delivery partners is delegated to the Council’s Strategic 
Head of Economy and Growth in consultation with the Executive Member for Economy and Growth 
 
Confirm all MPs covering your lead local authority have been invited to join the local 
partnership group. 
Yes X No 
Are there MPs who are not supportive of your investment plan? 
Yes  No X 
(If Yes) Who are the MPs that are not supportive and outline their reasons why. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROJECT SELECTION 
Are you intending to select projects in any way other than by competition for funding? 
Yes No 
(If Yes) Describe your approach to selecting projects, and why you intend to do it this way. 
We are intending to select projects using Competition, Challenge Funds and Direct Awards.  We 
have gone through a process of selecting interventions and projects based on existing strategies 
that have been developed by our local partnership – the Burnley Economic Recovery and Growth 
Board.  However, we recognise that there is some value in competition and intend to, where 
appropriate introduce a competitive element and ensure that proposals are scrutinised for 
deliverability and value for money as set out in the Guidance for General Grants. 
 
Communities and Places 
Under the Communities and Places theme, there are number of projects where there is only a 
single provider in the locality e.g. the local authority is the only provider of public open space, town 
centre regeneration and leisure/sports facilities via its contractor Burnley Leisure and Culture.  The 
Burnley Youth Zone is a high priority and there is only one delivery body for this work – On Site.  In 
this instance it is not appropriate to introduce a competitive process and there is nothing to be 
gained in terms of savings or improved performance..  However, proposals for direct award will be 
scrutinised in line with the Grant Assessment Criteria set out in Guidance for General Grants.  
Projects delivered via direct must competitively tender any works, in line with the Council’s standing 
orders, to ensure value for money 
 
It is proposed to disburse a large proportion of the Communities and Place funding via a small 
grants scheme accessible to community and third sector organisations.  Projects funding through 
this programme will be subject to competitive competition with organisations being able to bid to an 
annual bidding round.  
 
Supporting Business 
 
Under the supporting business a Challenge Fund approach has been followed.  The rationale for 
this is that in order to achieve value for money there was a case for Lancashire wide delivery, there 
was an existing network of competing projects and the Challenge Fund approach has brought 

Page 42



 

 

about an opportunity to encourage collaboration between delivery bodies across Lancashire to 
prevent wasteful competition, duplication of outputs and to simplify the process for business 
recipients whilst at the same time retaining existing capability. 
 
Lancashire County Council issued a call to existing business support providers across Lancashire.   
to submit proposals to deliver against the UKSPF supporting business priorities, under the themes 
of General Business Support, Innovation and Low Carbon, with a brief on simplifying the existing 
business support framework and delivering within a significantly reduced budget. From this, 12 
business support propositions were presented in writing to all 14 Local Authorities across 
Lancashire.  The proposals included an outline of the project, its delivery mechanism, outcomes, 
outputs and costings.  Each local authority had 2 weeks to digest this information and how it 
aligned with their own Council’s priorities and strategies. Each of the 12 projects was invited to 
present their submission to all the 14 local authorities with a Q&A session. This process took place 
over a week with different presentations on each day.  This process resulted in the merger of some 
projects and a request to proposers to reconsider their initial costs and were given further challenge 
on matched funding. 
 
From this process Burnley Council has identified a short list of five proposals that have a strategic 
fit and are within the proposed budget envelope.  The Council has then entered into dialogue with 
the projects it was interested in taking forward to refine the offer.  These consultations allowed local 
level discussions around specific engagement, resource, data, outputs with an opportunity to refine 
any of these as well as cost.   Prior to final award, each project will have to submit a full business 
case for scrutiny in line with the Grant Assessment Criteria set out in the Guidance for General 
Grants. 
 
People and Skill 
 
Under this priority, there has been a County wide call for bids, facilitated by LCC and the 
Lancashire Skills hub, from existing ESIF delivery bodies, following the same process set out in the 
supporting business section.  Burnley Council considered four proposals.  The proposals were not 
taken forward within our investment plan, the council felt that they were very much a “one size fits 
all approach”, relied on an existing model and incurred very high management costs (25%) and did 
little to engage with the wide range of delivery partners based in Burnley that have a in depth local 
knowledge and ability to access difficult to reach communities and groups.      The Council has 
decided to go down a Challenge Fund route.  There are a number of organisations within the 
borough who deliver a range of employment and skills support.   We have also identified a need, 
similar to business support, to streamline provision to prevent duplication and competition for 
clients between organisations.  In addition, the fact that the amount of funding available is 
significantly reduced compared to European funding, it will naturally drive innovation and cost 
efficiencies. 
 
It was agreed to engage with Burnley’s existing Employment & Skills Group to ascertain what we 
could achieve at a local level rather than a pan-Lancashire wide one.  We have carried out local 
market engagement including an impact assessment with the existing employability support 
providers in the borough to fully understand what is currently delivered and the impact of these 
projects once European funding ends.  We have collaborated with  the Employment & Skills Group 
chair to prepare a brief   for a locally delivered and managed programme of support that meets with 
UKSPF outcomes, addresses locally identified labour market issues and target groups, and 
provides a clear and comprehensive pathway of resources to support recipients progress towards 
the labour market.  Advice given in a DWP webinar on UKSPF has also informed the brief, as was 
the need to ensure continuity in delivery for third sector bodies at risk. 
 
A facilitated workshop has been held with the Employment and Skills Partnership attended by 19 
potential delivery organisations. At the workshop the partnership were asked to consider the brief 
and co-design a collaborative local delivery proposal based on the specific needs of Burnley’s 
residents and businesses.This process is still on-going; however we feel that we will be able to 
provide a more effective and tailored package of support with local delivery rather than buying into 
a pan-Lancashire wide project.  Once the detailed co-designed proposal is completed, Calico 
Group, who have extensive experience in delivering labour market programmes, will lead the 
consortium running a closed competition for those within the Employment & Skills group who are 

Page 43



 

 

already delivering existing European funded projects in the first two years, extending to a wider 
partnership in year 3. The proposal will be subject to assessment in line with the Government 
Grants Guidance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DO YOU INTEND TO WORK WITH OTHER PLACES ON ANY OF THE INTERVENTIONS WHICH 
FALL UNDER THE COMMUNITIES AND PLACE INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply.  None 
Intervention Tick if 

applicable 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the 
Prospectus.  

 

  
  
N/A  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Describe any interventions not included in this list? 
 
 
None 
 
 
 
Who are the places you intend to collaborate with? 
 
 
None 
 
 
 

 

DO YOU INTEND TO WORK WITH OTHER PLACES ON ANY OF THE INTERVENTIONS WHICH 
FALL UNDER THE SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 

Page 44



 

 

Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply. 
Intervention Tick if 

applicable 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the 
Prospectus.  

 

  
E18  
E19  
E23  
E28  
E29  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Describe any interventions not included in this list? 
 
 
None 
 
 
 
Who are the places you intend to collaborate with? 
Blackburn with Darwen 
Chorley 
Fylde 
Lancaster 
Hyndburn 
Pendle 
Preston 
South Ribble 
West Lancashire 
Wyre 
 
 
 
 

 

DO YOU INTEND TO WORK WITH OTHER PLACES ON ANY OF THE INTERVENTIONS WHICH 
FALL UNDER THE PEOPLE AND SKILLS INVESTMENT PRIORITY? 
Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply. None 
Intervention Tick if 

applicable 
A full list of nation-specific interventions is available in the relevant annex to the 
Prospectus.  

 

  
  
N/A  
  
  
  
  

Page 45



 

 

  
  
Describe any interventions not included in this list? 
 
 
 
None 
 
 
 
Who are the places you intend to collaborate with? 
 
 
 
None 
 
 
 

 

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 
How have you considered your public sector equality duty in the design of your investment 
plan? 
Yes. We have assessed our plan for its equality impact. There are no detrimental impacts. The 
positive impacts include: 
Our Plans to improve our town and neighbourhood centres will be accessible to all. 
Our plans to improve green space in the borough will support our Green Space strategy. That 
strategy ensures that investment decisions are based on objective assessment of green space 
quality and access data. In practice this eliminates discrimination in investment decisions, as it 
guarantees a focus on areas of the town where there is a gap in provision, many of which are 
majority Pakistani and Bangladeshi heritage. 
Our plans to invest in local opportunities to play sport is about bringing people together, which in 
turn helps foster good relations. 
Our plans for supporting businesses will be open and inclusive. 
Our plans for employment support include a focus on residents with protected characteristics who 
face barriers to the labour market.  
 
 
How will you consider your public sector equality duty when implementing your investment 
plan, including in the selection of projects? 
 
Delivery contracts with the VCFS and private sector will include equality duty clauses..We will 
monitor the implementation of the plan to ensure our equality objectives are being met; for example 
by ensuring that grants are fairly distributed to organisations that represent residents with protected 
characteristics.  
 
 
 

 

RISKS 
Have you identified any key risks that could affect delivery, for example lack of staff or 
expertise? 
Yes  X No 
(If Yes) Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in 
place to mitigate them. 
On a day-to-day basis the risks will be monitored by the Shared Prosperity Fund Manager that has 
recently been appointed and risk will be built into the more formal performance review and 

Page 46



 

 

monitoring process. A formal risk register will be presented and reviewed to the Economic 
Recovery and Growth Board as part of their governance role. 
 
Risks include: -  
 

• Delay in Investment Plan approval – this will have a significant impact on our ability to 
spend the first year’s allocation.  There is also a risk that delivery partners with ESIF 
funding coming to an end early next year will start to lose staff and capacity that will be 
difficult to replace. 

 
• Over demand – more demand than provision given the level of SPF funding – we will need 

to manage expectations from the outset to avoid disappointment and be clear in our offer. 
We have undertaken a rigorous prioritisation process to ensure that funds are targeted 
where most needed. 
 

 
• Lack of demand – we will monitor & review performance levels on a regular basis and 

identify any areas where take-up has been less than expected.  A targeted campaign will 
be affected to increase interest, including marketing, events and word of mouth via the 
Council’s support officers, the partner network and delivery partners. 
 

 
• Unable to deliver within the timescale – robust initial processes include realistic outputs will 

take place and as part of the regular review process any issues will be picked up in a timely 
manner.  We will put in place a formal Change Control process so that we can manage 
delivery across the programme.  Conversations will be had with the delivery partners to 
understand any issues and if these cannot be addressed with suitable solutions, a 
conversation will be had with DHLUC to explain the position with a potential to look at a re-
profile 
 

 
• Lack of County wide buy in to the opt-in’s – The initial process to identify partners to work 

with was structured in a way to ensure that the delivery models were achievable however 
there is a risk that following year 1, or year 2 other local authorities’ may make a change 
request to stop delivering a particular project or to  reduce outputs – should this happen, 
this could have a knock-on effect to other local authorities and their delivery profiles. 
Should this happen discussions will be had with the individual partner to understand 
scalability – if it is deemed that the 31project cannot be scaled accordingly, we shall seek 
to look at alternative methods of delivering the strand, or speak to DHLUC about a re-
profile 
 

 
• Lack of match funding – The initial process to outline project delivers, outputs/outcomes 

and costings, including match, was set out at the initial consultation stage.  However, 
should something change that has an impact of the match funding we will look to either 
secure match from an alternative source or re-profile outputs/outcomes reducing cost 
accordingly, in consultation with DHLUC 
 

 
• Getting the panel together in a timely manner to review applications.  We will work ahead 

of schedule and set out a calendar of meetings in good time so that there is a reduced 
chance of people not being able to attend.  This will also apply to partner 
performance/review meetings and deadlines for reports as well so that there are clear 
parameters ahead of time.  

 
• Covid – If we were to have another outbreak with restrictions, we will need to be in a 

position to either implement social distancing measures or move to on-line delivery models.  
Given that all partners have already done this in some guise this should not be an issue – 
however we should always be ready to re-act 
 

Page 47



 

 

Cost inflation could affect both revenue and capital projects.  Delivery partners will need to factor 
into their proposals and costings increased costs for labour, materials and overheads.  Capital 
Projects will need to account for cost price inflation and include a realistic contingency. 

•  
 
Have you identified any key fraud risks that could affect UKSPF delivery? 
Yes X No 
(If Yes) Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in 
place to mitigate them. 
 
We deem this project and the partners that we plan to work with to be low risk, particularly as the 
organisations are known to us with a history of local performance and delivery. 
 
In terms of risk there are 2 levels – once at strategic level and one at operational level both of 
which need to be proportionate. 
 
Both the Council and the partner/delivery organisations will be asked to carry out due diligence in 
processes at all stages and all parties will be required to keep appropriate records & documents for 
evidence. 
Robust checks will be undertaken as part of the awarding process to reduce the risk of any 
fraudulent claims happening and to ensure that evidence can be collected, these will include pre-
due diligence, inspection and verification post-delivery and through the performance & monitoring 
arrangements. 
 
Organised fraud amongst partners could be a key risk, prices could be inflated, or they could falsify 
information, however as mentioned above as the partners we are working with are known to us and 
have an established track record this is deemed to be low risk 
 

 

Capacity and capability 

In this section, we will ask you about: 

• The capacity and capability of your team to manage funding 
• The resources you have in place for work related to UKSPF 

Your answers here will help us know how to support you with delivery. They will not affect 
the amount of funding you will get. 

Answer as honestly as possible. 

TEAM RESOURCE 
How many people (FTE) will be put in place to work with UKSPF funding? 
 
1 full time member of staff solely dedicated to working on UKSPF 
 
 
0.10 FTE Senior Manager 
 
0.20 admin officer 
 
Describe what role these people will have, including any seniority and experience. 
 
A full-time member of staff has recently been appointed as Shared prosperity Fund Manager and 
will have full responsibility for all elements of Burnley’s UKSPF including initial assessment, writing 
investment plan, co-ordinating competition process, project management, relationship 
management, monitoring, budget’s & finance, evaluation and so on.  30 years' experience working 
within the business support arena managing various European funded projects and 5 years' 

Page 48



 

 

experience in employment & skills sector - more recently as an employment & skills partnership co-
ordinator 
 
 
The SPF manager will report directly to the Strategic Head of Economy and Growth who will 
provide programme oversight, escalating issues within the Council and with the programme 
governance structures if necessary.  The Strategic Head of Economy and Growth is a member of 
the Council’s Management Team and has over 20 years experience of managing complex projects 
and programs across business support, place and employment and skills. 
 
The SPF manager will be based in the Council’s Economy and Growth Unit and will have access to 
admin support who will process payments and assist with budget monitoring. The admin team are 
experienced and have worked on other externally funded projects and programs, most recently on 
CRF, and are familiar with the Council’s finance and grant giving procedures. 
 
The SPF Manager will also have the support of a Finance Business Partner from the Council’s 
finance team who will assist with budget management, monitoring and claims. 
 
 
 
 

 

• Strong capability: Has extensive experience and/or a proven track record of delivery 
in this area. 

• Strong capacity: High degree of confidence that there is enough staffing/resource to 
manage funding in this area. 

• Some capability: Has previous experience of delivery in this area. 
• Some capacity: Confident that there is enough staffing/resource to manage funding 

in this area. 
• Limited capability: Does not have previous experience and/or no track record of 

delivery in this area. 
• Limited capacity: Limited confidence that there is enough staffing/resource to 

manage funding in this area. Additional resource may be needed to support delivery. 

CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 
How would you describe your team’s current experience of delivering funding and 
managing growth funds? 
Very experienced Some experience No previous experience 
How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
procurement? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for 
procurement? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for procurement? 
Strong capacity Some capacity Limited capacity 
How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for subsidies? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for subsidies? 
Strong capacity Some capacity Limited capacity 

 

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 
Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the Communities and 
Place interventions you have select? 
Yes X No 

Page 49



 

 

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Communities 
and Place interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and 
Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
Burnley Council has a long history in delivering support and grants programmes including both 
local, tailored provision and being part of regional and national programmes.  Capability is not seen 
as a particular challenge for the Council as it has a team of support officers with over 30 years' 
experience in awarding grant’s which include capital & revenue grants.  The Council has a specific 
Community Engagement Officer who is embedded within various groups and committees and their 
experience and skills will be utilised within this project, as appropriate. 
 
The Council has a Development Team and Green Spaces team who are experienced in delivering 
placed based capital projects. We are also working with a trusted partner in the CVS who has a 
range of skills and capabilities to augment the Council in delivering this program 
 
 
Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
 
 
None 
 
 
How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Communities 
and Place interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and 
Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
Capacity will be absorbed by the recently appointed Shared Prosperity Fund Manager who will 
have the support of the wider Economic Development team and it’s officers on the ground – 
therefore this is not deemed to be a key challenge 
The capacity of the Council’s Development Team  currently stretched as a result of a programme of 
existing projects commitments including LUF.  Greenspaces Team capacity is stretched due to 
other commitments and significant staffing reductions over recent years, however, the proposed 
work can be accommodated. 
 
 
 
Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
A light touch to programme management and monitoring across all government would address the 
capacity challenge. 
 
 
 

 

SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESS CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 
Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the Supporting Local 
Business interventions you have select? 
Yes No 
How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Supporting 
Local Business interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 

Page 50



 

 

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local 
Business interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
Burnley Council has a long history in delivery business support and grants programmes including 
both local, tailored provision and being part of regional and national programmes.  Capability is not 
seen as a particular challenge for the Council as it has a team of support officers with over 30 
years' experience in awarding grant’s which include capital & revenue grants and funded business 
advice, workshops and events.  This team’s experience and skills will be utilised within this project, 
as appropriate. 
 
The Council retains a Business Support Team of 5.5 FTE’s who have significant knowledge of the 
business support ecosystem, established links with delivery partners and strong links and good 
reputation amongst the business community in Burnley.  The Council will be engaging with a range 
of partners who have significant capability in delivering Local Business Interventions, all partners 
are familiar with the area reducing lead in times from inception to delivery. 
 
The Council uses a CRM system called EVOLUTIVE that links with BOOST Lancashire and all 
providers will be encouraged to use this system. 
 
 
 
Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
 
None 
 
As part of one of the County wide opt-in's there will be an assigned “local ambassador” who will act 
as a direct link between the Council, the Delivery partner(s) and the businesses on the ground. 
 
 
 
 
How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Supporting 
Local Business interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local 
Business interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
It is envisaged that capacity will not be a key challenge for the Council, A newly appointed post of 
Shared prosperity Fund Manager has been created and there is a well-established Economic 
Development team, with officers firmly rooted within their local business community and who have 
an up-to-date and thorough understanding of local business needs. The Council has a long history 
of delivering a range of business support programmes, including grants to business, and is 
currently a delivery partner within Boost, under the current ESF project.  
 
Burnley Council recognises that by working together and pooling resources as part of a County 
wide project, delivery activity across Local Authority boundaries achieves faster results and 
provides value for money and achieves greater levels of coordination. As part of the BOOST 
Lancashire Project there will be a “local ambassador”, who will act as a directly link between the 
Council, the Delivery Partners and businesses.  This role has been used effectively in Greater 
Manchester significantly improving the reach of interventions in the business community.  This role 
will significantly boost the Council’s business support team. 
 
Capacity challenges, if any, are likely to come from the partners on the ground delivering – this 
information will be ascertained as part of the regular performance monitoring and review process. It 
is imperative that both DLUC and Burnley Council are able to move swiftly to contracting with 
delivery bodies in order to avoid them loosing capacity as European funds start to close. A benefit 
of a county wide project is that should this arise, we may be able to pull resource if needed from 
other partners.  

Page 51



 

 

Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
 
None 
 
A light touch monitoring and reporting with DLUC.  On many programmes we now report 6 monthly. 
 
 
 
 

 

PEOPLE AND SKILLS CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY 
Does your local authority have any previous experience of delivering the People and Skills 
interventions you have select? 
Yes No 
How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for People and 
Skills interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills 
interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
This area is not seen as a key issue as the team at Burnley Council includes a member of staff who 
has specific responsibility for supporting local partnerships who are involved in delivering 
employability & skills type support. She sits on the Employment & Skills Steering Group and 
provides the link between partners on the ground and the Council’s strategic and statutory 
responsibilities. The Council has limited capability in managing funding for people and skills as this 
has been managed by the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership.  However, the Council has identified 
a range of partners to work with on this priority all of whom have significant capability in this area.  
However, delays in approval of the investment plan does run the risk of key staff leaving if there is 
not a seamless transition between ESIF and SPF funding. 
Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
As there is an existing employment & skills group which has all the key delivery partners within it, it 
is envisaged that there is enough experience and resource within the group to provide additional 
support/resource if needed 
 
A timely decision on UKSPF to enable a seamless transition between ESIF and SPF to prevent the 
loss of capacity and capability in partner organisations. 
 
How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for People and 
Skills interventions? 
Strong capability Some capability Limited capability 
Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills 
interventions. This may include challenges within your local authority and/or your 
local/regional delivery system. 
 
The role of the above person will remain fundamental to the Council’s services and the link to the 
Employment & Skills Group will continue ensuring this link remains, therefore capacity is not 
deemed to be a key challenge 
 
 
 
Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 
As there is an existing employment & skills group which has all the key delivery partners within it, it 
is envisaged that there is enough experience and resource within the group to provide additional 
support/resource if needed 
 
 

 

Page 52



 

 

SUPPORT TO DELIVERY UKSPF 
 
All lead authorities can use up to 4% of their UKSPF allocation to support the delivery of 
their chosen interventions but by exception, lead authorities will be able to use more than 
4%. Are you planning to use more than 4%? 
 
Yes No X 
(If Yes) Explain why you wish to use more than 4%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Approvals 

Before submitting your investment plan, you should have approval from your: 

• Chief Executive Officer 
• Section 151 Officer 
• Leader of your lead authority 

Do you have approval from your Chief Executive Officer for this investment plan? 

o Yes 
o No 

Do you have approval from your Section 151 Officer for this investment plan? 

o Yes 
o No 

Do you have approval from the leader of your lead authority for this investment plan? 

o Yes 
o No 

If you do not have approval from any of these people, please explain why this is: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Additional documents 
You will have received an email giving you access to a folder where you will need to upload 
supporting evidence to your investment plan. All applicants must complete and upload the 
following spreadsheet to the folder prior to submitting their investment plan: 

- UKSPF Expenditure Profile spreadsheet 

Page 53



 

 

- UKSPF Indicative Deliverables spreadsheet 
 

Your investment plan submission will be considered incomplete without the required 
documents. 

Have you completed and uploaded the two spreadsheets to the SharePoint 
folder as requested? 

o Yes 
o No 

 

Page 54



1

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The following interventions are the ones that, though a series of initial assessment & discussions we recommend should not be considered for 
support –each intervention has a short rationale on the basis of the decision in the final column. 

 Communities and Place 
Interventions   Indicative Outputs Indicative Outcomes Rationale for not 

supporting 
E7: Support for active 
travel enhancements in 
the local area. 

Amount of new or improved cycleways or paths 
 
Number of neighbourhood improvements undertaken 
 
Amount of public realm created or improved 
 
Number of facilities supported/created 
 
Amount of green or blue space created or improved 

Increased use of cycleways or paths There is a strategic 
case for 
interventions of this 
type in terms of 
health 
improvements and 
reductions in CO2 
emissions.  Low 
cycling and walking 
rates. 
LCC/ LUF 2 
investment 
There is insufficient 
capital available to 
have a significant 
impact here – out of 
scope in this scheme 

E8: Funding for the 
development and 
promotion of wider 
campaigns which 
encourage people to 
visit and explore the 
local area. 

▪ Number of organisations receiving financial support other 
than grants 

▪ Number of organisations receiving grants 
▪ Number of people reached 
▪ Number of organisations receiving non-financial support 

Increased footfall 
 
Increased visitor numbers 
 
Increased number of web searches for 
a place 
 
Reduced vacancy rates 

Very small part of 
the local economy 
 
Burnley 
Brand/Bondholders 
and Burnley BID 
are active in this 
field. 
 
Not a priority 

E12: Investment in 
community 
engagement schemes 
to support community 
involvement in 
decision making in 
local regeneration. 

Number of organisations receiving    financial support other 
than grants 
Number of organisations receiving grants 
Number of organisations receiving non-financial support 
Number of volunteering opportunities supported 
Number of people reached 
Number of local events or activities supported 

Improved engagement numbers  

P
age 55



2

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

E13: Community 
measures to reduce 
the cost of living, 
including through 
measures to improve 
energy efficiency, and 
combat fuel poverty 
and climate change. 

Number of people reached 
Number of organisations receiving financial support other than 
grants 
Number of organisations receiving grants 
Number of organisations receiving non-financial support 
Number of households receiving support 
Number of households supported to take up energy efficiency 
measures 

Greenhouse gas reductions 
 
Increased take up of energy efficiency 
measures 

This is a priority 
identified in the 
Community 
Recovery Plan. 
Addresses 
challenges of low 
income and CO2 
emissions 
Within scope of this 
program there is not 
enough funding to 
have an impact 

E15: Investment and 
support for digital 
infrastructure for local 
community facilities. 

Number of organisations receiving financial support other than 
grants 
 
Number of organisations receiving grants 
 
Number of organisations receiving non-financial support 
 
Number of facilities supported/created 

Number of new or improved 
community facilities as a result of 
support 
 
Improved perception of 
facility/infrastructure project 
 
Number of premises with improved 
digital connectivity 
  

No evidence to 
suggest this is a 
challenge. 
KADA report shows 
most areas are well 
connected but take 
up low. 
BRSK offering “free” 
fibre to fibre to 
schools & community 
groups 

E16: Investment in open 
markets and 
improvements to town 
centre retail and service 
sector infrastructure, with 
wrap around support for 
small businesses. 

Number of local markets supported 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
Number of businesses receiving grants 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance be business 
ready 

Jobs created 
Jobs safeguarded 
Number of new businesses created 
Increased footfall 
Increased visitor numbers 
Reduced vacancy rates 
Improved perception of markets 
Increased business sustainability 
Increased number of businesses supported 

Fits with Economic 
Recovery Strategy 
and Town Centre 
masterplan. 
Active BID in Burnley 
and a recently 
established outdoor 
market.  
 
Capital required for a 
new market and for 
other town centre 
improvements is out 
of scope. 
 
Retail businesses will be 
eligible for core business 
support offer through 
BOOST. 

  

P
age 56



3

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Supporting Local Business 
Interventions Indicative Outputs Indicative Outcomes Rational for not-

supporting 
E17: Funding for the 
development and 
promotion (both trade and 
consumer) of the visitor 
economy, such as local 
attractions, trails, tours 
and tourism products 
more generally. 

Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
 
Number of Tourism, Culture or heritage assets created or improved 
 
Number and m2 of commercial buildings developed or improved 
 
Number of people reached 
 
Number of local events or activities supported 

Jobs created 
 
Jobs Safeguarded 
 
Increased footfall 
 
Increased visitor 
numbers 
 
Increase in visitor 
spending 
 
Increased amount of 
investment 
 
Improved perception of 
attractions 

Very small sector 
in the area. 
 
Businesses can 
benefit from 
expanded core 
business support 
offer – ensure 
mainstream 
programmes cover 

E20: Research and 
development grants 
supporting the 
development of 
innovative products 
and services. 
 
 

Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 

Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 

Number of new to 
market products 
 
Number of R&D active 
businesses 
 
Number of businesses 
adopting new to the 
firm technologies or 
processes 
Increased amount of 
investment 
 
Number of 
organisations 
engaged in new 
knowledge transfer 
activity 
Number of businesses 
adopting new/improved  

Identified as key 
intervention in 
Economic 
Recovery 
Strategy 
 
Previous CRF 
grant scheme 
awarded £300k - 
continuation of 
CRF project not 
feasible within 
SPF budget 
envelope 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 57



4

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
E21: Funding for the 
development and 
support of appropriate 
innovation infrastructure at 
the local level 

 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial 
Support 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance to be business 
ready 

 
 
Jobs created 
 
Jobs safeguarded 
 
Number of new 
businesses created 
 
Number of businesses 
adopting new to the 
firm technologies or 
processes 
 
Number of businesses 
with improved 
productivity 
 
Number of new to 
market products 
 
Number of businesses 
introducing new 
products to the firm 

 
 
Identified in 
Economic 
Recovery Plan 
 
Burnley College 
already made a 
significant 
investment in 
innovation and 
technology facilities 
(IOT) 
 
Insufficient capital 
for schemes of this 
nature. 
 
Given lack of 
capital, this would 
need to be 
revenue-based 
activities.  Cross 
over with E18 – 21. 

E22: Investing in enterprise 
infrastructure and 
employment/innovation site 
development projects. This 
can help to unlock site 
development projects 
which will support growth in 
places. 

Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
 
Amount of rehabilitated land or premises 
 
Number and m2 of commercial buildings developed or improved 
 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance to be business 
ready 

Jobs created 
Jobs safeguarded 
Number of new 
businesses created 
Reduced vacancy 
rates  
Number of 
premises with 
improved digital 
connectivity 
Number of businesses 
adopting new to the 
firm technologies or 
processes 
Increased amount of 
investment 

Identified need for 
employment 
infrastructure and 
strategic priority, but 
out of scope due to 
size of SPF fund 

P
age 58



5

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

E24: Funding for new and 
improvements to existing 
training hubs, business 
support offers, ‘incubators’ 
and ‘accelerators’ for local 
enterprise (including social 
enterprise) which can 
support entrepreneurs and 

Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance to be 
business ready 

Jobs created 
Jobs safeguarded 
Number of new 
businesses created 
Number of businesses 
adopting new to firm 
technologies or 
processes 
Increased amount of 
investment 
Number of businesses 
introducing new 
products to the firm 
Number of  
organisations 
engaged in new 
knowledge transfer 
activity 
Number of early stage 
firms which increase 
their revenue following 
support 
Number of R&D active 
business 

Insufficient capital for 
new incubators. 
 
No existing incubators 
to invest in.  
Insufficient critical 
mass to make an 
incubator model work. 
 
Best delivered through 
an intensive business 
support programme 
open to young 
businesses 
irrespective of location. 
 

E25: Grants to help places 
bid for and host 
international business 
events and conferences 
that support wider local 
growth sectors. 

Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
 
Number of events/participatory programmes 

Increased visitor 
numbers 
Increased 
numberof 
businesses 
engaged in new 
markets 
Increased amount of 
investment 
Increased number of 
businesses supported 
Number of organisations 
engaged in new 
knowledge transfer 
activity 

Not a priority 

P
age 59



6

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

E26 Support for growing 
the local social economy, 
including community 
businesses, cooperatives, 
and social enterprises. 

Number of people attending training sessions 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 
 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance to be business 
ready 

Jobs created 
 
Jobs safeguarded 
 
Number of new 
businesses created 
 
 

Social economy 
businesses to access 
mainsstream 
provision 

E27: Funding to develop 
angel investor networks 
nationwide. 

Existing national and 
regional programmes 

 

Number of angel investors in the local area 
 
Number of businesses receiving angel investment 
 
Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving grants 
 
Number of angel investors engaged 
 
Number of potential entrepreneurs provided assistance to be business  
ready 

Jobs created 
 
Number of new 
businesses created 
 
Increased number of 
businesses engaged in 
new markets 
 
Increased business 
sustainability 
 
Increased amount of 
investment 

 
E30: Business support 
measures to drive 
employment growth, 
particularly in areas of 
higher unemployment. 

Number of businesses receiving financial support other than grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support other than 
grants 
 
Number of businesses receiving non-financial support 

Jobs created 
 
Increased number of 
businesses supported 
 
Increased business 
sustainability 

Burnley is very 
compact and targeted 
approach such as this 
not required 

E31 Funding for schemes 
that better protect local 
businesses from flooding 
and coastal erosion 

Number of properties better protected from flooding and coastal erosion Jobs created 
Jobs safeguarded 
Increased number of 
properties better 
protected from flooding 
and coastal erosion 

Out of scope due to 
capital restrictions.  
Major flood defense 
scheme underway in 
Padiham 

P
age 60



7

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  People & 
Skills 

Interventions Indicative Outputs Indicative Outcomes Rational for not-
supporting 

E34: Courses including 
basic skills (digital, English, 
maths (via Multiply) and 
ESOL), and life skills and 
career skills** provision for 
people who are unable to 
access training through the 
adult education budget or 
wrap around support 
detailed above. 
Supplemented by financial 
support for learners to 
enrol onto courses and 
complete qualifications. 
This intervention will also 
contribute to building 
community cohesion and 
facilitate greater 
shared civil pride, leading 
to better integration 
benefitting from ESOL 
support.   
** where not being met by 
DWP provision 

Number of people supported to engage in life skills 
 
Number of people supported onto a course through providing financial 
support 

Number of people in 
education/training 
Number of people in 
employment, including 
self-employment, 
following support 
 
Increased number of 
people with basic 
skills (English, maths, 
digital and ESOL) 
 
Fewer people facing 
structural barriers into 
employment and into 
skills provision 

Maths support via 
Multiply 
 
ESOL via existing 
provision 
 
Covered within E33 

E32: Investment in 
resilience infrastructure 
and nature-based solutions 
that protect local 
businesses and 
community areas from 
natural hazards including 
flooding and coastal 
erosion. 

Number of properties better protected from flooding and coastal erosion Jobs created 
 
Jobs safeguarded 
 
Increased number of 
properties better 
protected from 
flooding and coastal 
erosion 

Out of scope due to 
capital restrictions.  
Major flood defense 
scheme underway in 
Padiham 

P
age 61



8

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

E36: Intervention to 
increase levels of digital 
inclusion, with a focus on 
essential digital skills, 
communicating the 
benefits of getting (safely) 
online, and in- community 
support to provide users 
with the confidence and 
trust to stay online. 

Number of people supported to access basic skills 
 
Number of people supported to engage in life skills 

Number of people 
gaining a qualification 
following support 

Assessing other 
provision via Burnley 
College & Lancashire 
Adult Learning 
 
Delivery of digital skills 
within the community 
setting 

 
Skills hub funding for 
Digital Boot Camps to 
March 2025 
 

E37: Tailored support to 
help people in 
employment, who are not 
supported by mainstream 
provision to address 
barriers to accessing 
education and training 
courses. 

Number of people supported to participate in education 
 
Number of people retraining 
 
Number of people in employment engaging with the skills system 

Number of people 
gaining qualifications, 
licenses and skills 

There is a potential 
county wide provision 
delivered via 
Selnet/Active 
Lancashire however 
provision would better 
meet the needs of the 
community with 
delivery via Thrive and 
its partners. 

E38: Support for local 
areas to fund local skills 
needs. This includes 
technical and vocational 
qualifications and 
courses up to level 2 and 
training for vocational 
licenses relevant to local 
area needs and high-
value qualifications where 
there is a need for 
additional skills capacity 
that cannot be met 
through mainstream 
funding 
 
 

Number of people receiving support to gain a vocational license Number of people in 
education/training 
 
Number of people in 
employment, including 
self-employment, 
following support 

 
Number of 
economically active 
individuals engaged in 
mainstream skills 
education and training 

 
 
 

Reviewing college 
provision and gaps 
 
 
Unlikely to be sufficient 
funding to have impact. 

P
age 62



9

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

E39: Green skills courses 
targeted around ensuring 
we have the skilled 
workforce to achieve the 
government’s net zero 
and wider environmental 
ambitions. 

Number of people receiving support to gain employment Number of people 
gaining a qualification 
following support 
 
Number of people in 
employment, including 
self-employment, 
following support 
 
 

Burnley College 
developed green corridor 
– skills training –
continuation of this via 
IOT and other sources 
 

E40: Retraining support 
for those in high carbon 
sectors. 

Number of people receiving support to gain employment 
 
Number of people attending training sessions 
 
Number of people retraining 
 
Number of people receiving support to sustain employment 

Number of people 
gaining a qualification 
following support 
 
Number of people in 
employment, including 
self-employment, 
following support 

No completely clear 
what is meant by High 
Carbon Sectors, 
presumably oil and gas 
industry therefore not a 
priority 

E41: Funding to support 
local digital skills. 

Number of people supported to engage in life skills Number of people 
gaining a qualification 
following support 
 
Number of people 
engaged in life skills 
support following 
interventions 

Unlikely to be able to 
deliver significant 
output with funding 
available – maybe 
something within the 
community grant pot  

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Consultees 
 
Active Lancashire  
Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (ARMC)  
BEIS  
BFC in the Community  
BOOST Lancashire 
BPR CVS  
Burnley College  
Burnley Council  
Burnley Leisure and Culture  
Burnley Together Partnership 
Calico  
Child Action Northwest  
DWP  
East Lancs Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ED Officer Network  
Edge Hill University  
Groundwork/Newground  
Manchester Growth Company   
Growth Lancashire  
Lancashire Adult Learning  
Lancashire County Council  
Lancashire Skills Hub/LEP  
Lancashire Innovation Partnership 
Lancaster University  
Lancashire Women  
Marketing Lancashire  
New Era Enterprises  
Princes Trust  
Selnet  
Thrive/Employment & Skills Steering Group  
UCLan  

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

Communities and Place 
Intervention Projects Funding allocation 
E1: Funding for improvements 
to town centres and high 
streets, including better 
accessibility for disabled 
people, including capital spend 
and running costs.  

Colne Road Enhancements 
 
HAZ extension  
 
Small Grants Scheme 

£100K 
 
£100K 

E2Funding for new or 
improvements to existing 
community and neighborhood 
infrastructure projects including 
those that increase 
communities’ resilience to 
natural hazards, such as 
flooding.  This could include 
capital spend and running cost 

Small Grants Scheme  

E3: Creation of and 
improvements to local green 
spaces, community gardens, 
watercourses and 
embankments, along with 
incorporating natural features 
into wider public spaces 

Small Grants Scheme 
Play Area and Wheeled Sports 
Investment 
 
 
BAXI Site remediation & Green 
space project 

 
£110K (plus circa £68K from BBC 
and £30k from other sources 
 
£200K 

E4: Enhanced support for 
existing cultural, historic and 
heritage institutions that make 
up the local cultural heritage 
offer.  

Small Grants Scheme  

E5: Design and management 
of the built and landscaped 
environment to ‘design out 
crime’.  

Small Grants Scheme  

E6: Support for local arts, 
cultural, heritage and creative 
activities.  

Small Grants Scheme  

E9: Funding for impactful 
volunteering and/or social 
action projects to develop 
social and human capital in 
local places 

Small Grants Scheme  

E10: Funding for local sports 
facilities, tournaments, teams 
and leagues; to bring people 
together.  

Small Grants Scheme 
Barden Track 

 
£75K (£525k match) 

E11: Investment in capacity 
building and infrastructure 
support for local civil society 
and community groups.  

Small Grant Scheme  

E14: Funding to support 
relevant feasibility studies 

Youth Zone RIBA 3 Plans £100K 

 Small Grants Scheme £800,000 
Total Funding for Communities 
and Place 

 £1,485,000 

 
 
 
 

Page 67



Appendix 4 

 
Supporting Business 
Intervention Projects Funding Allocation 
E18: Supporting Made 
Smarter Adoption 

Growth Company 
Manufacturing Advice Service 

£126,000 

E19: Increasing investment 
in research and 
development at the local 
level.  

Lancashire HEI’s Innovation 
Programme (Lancashire 
Innovation Board with UCLAN, 
Lancaster Uni and Edge Hill 

£354,000* (seeking to reduce 
with match) 

E23: Strengthening local 
entrepreneurial ecosystems, 
and supporting businesses 
at all stages of their 
development to start, 
sustain, grow and innovate, 
including through local 
networks. 

BOOST Lancashire (Lancashire 
County Council) 

£285,000 plus £114K LCC 
match 

E28: Export Grants to 
support businesses to grow 
their overseas trading, 
supporting local 
employment.  

Export/International Trade 
Advice (ELCCI) 

£54,000* 

E29: Supporting 
decarbonisation and 
improving the natural 
environment whilst growing 
the local economy 

Net Zero and Business De-
carbonisation Programme 
(ELCCI) 

£128,000* plus £25K BBC 
match 

Total Business Support   
 

£947,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 68



Appendix 4 

 
Employment and Skills   
Intervention Project Funding 
E33: Employment support 
for economically inactive 
people: Intensive and wrap-
around one-to-one support 
to move people closer 
towards mainstream 
provision and employment, 
supplemented by additional 
and/or specialist life and 
basic skills (digital, English, 
maths* and ESOL) support 
where there are local 
provision gaps.   
E34: Courses including 
basic skills (digital, English, 
maths (via Multiply) and 
ESOL), and life skills and 
career skills** provision for 
people who are unable to 
access training through the 
adult education budget or 
wrap around support 
detailed above. 
Supplemented by  
financial support for learners 
to enrol onto courses and 
complete qualifications.  
E35: Activities such as 
enrichment and 
volunteering to improve 
opportunities  
and promote wellbeing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Burnley Together Steps to 
Employment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£916K plus Local match TBC 

   
Total Supporting Employment 
Funds 

 £916k 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Shared Prosperity Fund
	Appendix 1 UKSPF_Investment_Plan
	Your location
	Your details
	Approvals
	Additional documents
	Have you completed and uploaded the two spreadsheets to the SharePoint folder as requested?


	Appendix 2 UKSPF_England_Outputs_and_Outcomes -
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	9 Rough Sleeping Programme
	RSAP Report Financial Model - App 1


